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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

t gives me immense pleasure to welcome you all to the Fifth Annual General Meeting of the

Company. The report of the Board of Directors and audited annual accounts of the Company for
the year ended 31" March 2011 together with the Auditor's Report have already been circulated to
you, and with your permission, | take them as read.

The Dedicated Freight Corridor is one of the biggest infrastructure projects undertaken by Govt. of
India after independence. As the country's economy has entered into a high-growth phase, the
infrastructure needs of the country have multiplied. To meet this economic challenge, Ministry of
Railways have undertaken a mega project for a quantum jump in Railway's transportation capacity
for ensuring a sustainable growth of the national economy. The golden quadrilateral comprise of
some of the busiest routes of IR and the quadrilateral with two diagonals carry 55% of the revenue
earning freight traffic of IR. The existing traffic routes of Howrah-Delhi on Eastern Corridor and
Mumbai-Delhi on Western Corridor are highly saturated where line capacity utilisation varies from
115% to 150%.

Freight corridor concept plan is 10,122 Kms. but to begin with, the construction of two dedicated
freight corridors on Eastern Corridor from Ludhiana to Dankuni via Mughalsarai of 1839 Kms. and on
Western Corridor from Dadri to JNPT of 1534 Kms. have been approved. The DFC is a mega project
and the completion cost as per the Business Plan is Rs.77630 Crore. The additional capacity of
Eastern and Western Corridor will meet the demand of heavy coal movement' growing international
trade and booming infrastructure construction.

| would like to mention some of the major project activities undertaken in the current year. The
Business Plan of DFC setting out the framework of conduct of business of DFC Vision, Mission,
Objectives and Supporting Strategies is approved. The Concession Agreement, which will be
defining the relationship between Indian Railways and DFC, has also been approved. The
Concession Agreement lays down the principles of the revenue stream for Dedicated Freight
Corridor and which will be the basis of the operational and financial management of the company.

DFC Project has been declared as the special project of Ministry of Railways and land acquisition is
being done as per Railway Amendment Act, 2008. Land is being acquired by DFCCIL on behalf of
Central Govt. (MoR) through nominated competent authorities who are the revenue officers of the
State Govt. DFC alignment in Eastern and Western Corridor passes through 61 districts of 9 states
covering 10840 hectares of land (4349 hectares on Eastern Corridor and 6494 hectares on Western
Corridor). While acquiring land for freight corridors, environmental issues like forest land in Thane,
right of passage through Sanjay Gandhi National Park in Thane Distt. and forest clearance through
Balaji-Ambaji Wildlife Sanctuary in Gujarat have posed major challenges.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010-11




p’f@ Dedicated Freight Corridor
T —— Corporation of India Limited

s e TR

In case of densely populated area, the detours have been proposed so as to minimise the shifting of
population. The compensation for land is guided by the Principles of Equity and Justice enshrined in
the Railway Amendment Act, 2008 and National Rehabilitation and Settlement Policy 2007. For this
purpose, the compensation includes new benefits given in the entitlement matrix approved by the
Ministry of Railways such as ex gratia payment, additional compensation to marginal farmers etc. By
March 2011, about 6666 hectares of land (2541 hectares on Eastern Corridor and 4125 hectares on
Western Corridor) has been notified for being taken over for construction of freight corridor. Out of
this, compensation awards have been declared for 4252 hectares (1286 hectares on Eastern Corridor
and 2946 hectares on Western Corridor) which is about 40% of the total requirement of land. Upto
August 2011, 5004 hectares of land has been acquired which is 50% of the total requirement of DFC.
By June 2012, entire DFC land acquisition is likely to be completed. On Eastern and Western Corridor,
303 Kms. of alignment had to be changed for minimizing the social and environmental impact due to
construction of dedicated freight corridor.

I would like to throw some light on the progress of funding of the project. The Western Dedicated
Corridor is to be funded by JICA (Japan International Cooperation Agency). The Eastern Dedicated
Corridor between Ludhiana and Mughalsarai is to be funded by World Bank. The progress is as under

(i) Phase | (Vadodara—Rewari) 920 km (JICA)

Loan Agreement ID-P205 for Engineering Services Consultancy (Ph. 1) for Two Billion Six
hundred six million Japanese Yen and Loan Agreement ID-P209 for construction in the
Phase | for Ninety Billion two hundred sixty two million Japanese Yen was signed with JICA on
31/03/2010 and activities for final execution have started in full swing. The construction
contractis expected to be awarded by March 2012.

(ii) Phase Il (Vadodara—JNPT and Rewari - Dadri) 564 km (JICA)

Loan Agreement ID-P212 for Engineering Services Consultancy (Ph.Il) for One billion six
hundred sixteen million Japanese Yen was signed with JICA. Loan Agreement for
construction of Phase-Il is expected to be signed in March, 2012.

i) Funding for Mugalsarai-Kanpur-Khurja-Ludhiana section (1131 kms) of Eastern Dedicated
Freight Corridor — World Bank “in principle” has agreed to finance Eastern Dedicated Freight
Corridor from Mughalsarai to Ludhiana. World Bank has approved US$ 975 million loan for
Phase 1 Project of Eastern DFC from Khurja to Bhaupur (343km).

One of the important requirements for speedy construction of DFC s its organisation building for the
construction phase. By 2015, 932 staff strength would be required for this purpose. DFC has taken
recourse to market recruitment and Indian Railways have also been helping DFC by giving
manpower on deputation right from inception.
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It has also been decided to build Sonnagar — Dankuni section on Eastern DFC which is 525 Kms. long

on Public Private Partnership (PPP) model. Various options of financial models are under evaluation

by Railway Board which would form the basis of PPP agreement. Steps are being taken to expedite
the process.

The project faces a number of challenges like development of new rolling stock with 25t /32.5 t axle
load, high horse power locomotives and Multimodal Logistic Parks on the Dedicated Freight
Corridors. To achieve the full potential of the freight corridors, parallel development of higher axle
load wagons is a very important input so that heavier loads can be run on Dedicated Freight
Corridors. To operate heavier loads, Railways are also developing high horsepower locos which will
be very crucial as the maximum train speeds on the Dedicated Freight Corridors will increase from 75
Kmph to 100 Kmph. Further development of logistic parks is also a key infrastructure where
Multimodal traffic handling arrangements with other allied services would be necessary.

Another area of challenge is development of feeder routes alongwith the freight corridor. The
proposed feeder routes at present on Eastern and Western corridor have a route length of about
4,500 Kms. These routes have to be developed to run 25 t axle load and they need to be electrified to
have uniformity of traction. These works will be necessary for seamless operation of traffic from
ports to hinter land and for coal movement from mines to power houses.

With the rapidly changing corporate environment, Corporation is adopting CSR as a strategic tool
for sustainable growth. The Corporation has formulated a long term Corporate Social Plan specifying
activities to be undertaken, budgets allocated, responsibilities and authorities defined, and
measurable results expected. We are committed to operate in an economically, socially and
environmentally sustainable manner.

Ministry of Railways has entrusted DFCCIL with the task of managing Preliminary Engineering-cum-
Traffic Survey (PETS) for future dedicated heavy haul freight corridor named as East Coast Corridor
(between Kharagpur- Vijayawada, length about 1100 km), North-South Corridor (between Delhi-
Chennai length about 2173 km), Southern Dedicated freight Corridor (between Chennai-Goa,
length about 890 km) and East-West Corridor (between Kolkata-Nagpur-Mumbai, length about
2000 km) to be arranged through M/s. RITES. The work in this direction has started.

I would also like to inform you that as per the guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises
on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises in May 2010, "A Report on Corporate
Governance” and “Management Discussion and Analysis Report”, forms the part of the Annual
Report for the year ended 31st March 2011.Company is committed towards ensuring that business
ethics and values are adhered to. The Corporation has achieved the targets as set out in the
Memorandum of Understanding for the year 2010-2011 signed between Ministry of Railways and
DFCCIL. The Corporation has been graded as “Good"” by Department of Public Enterprises under the
MOU targets for the year 2009-2010.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010-11




”‘f@ Dedicated Freight Corridor
T —— Corporation of India Limited

s e TR

Acknowledgments

| thankfully acknowledge the cooperation and support extended by the Ministry of Railways, Zonal
Railways, other Ministries under the Government of India, the State Governments and its
Departments.

Further, | would like express my sincere thanks to the stakeholders of the Company for their support
to the Company. | look forward to their continued support in future also. | sincerely express my
gratitude to my colleagues on the “Board” for their valuable advice and their unstinted cooperation.

| must place on record my sincere thanks to our Bankers and Business Associates for their
cooperation and support to DFFCIL.

| acknowledge the dedicated, concerted, and sincere efforts put in by all officers and employees of
the Company. I am sure that with our dedicated efforts, it would be possible to achieve the mission of
the Company by pursuing the company's motto of Sincerity, Speed and Success, through a focused

approach.

Sd/-
Date : 17.09.2011 Vinay Mittal
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 5th Annual General Meeting of the Members of Dedicated Freight
Corridor Corporation of India Limited will be held on Saturday, 17th day of September 2011 at
12.30 PM. in Board Room, 5th Floor, Pragati Maidan, Metro Station Building Complex, New Delhi-
110001 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2011 and the
schedules annexed thereto together with the Directors' and Auditors' Report and comments
of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon.

Place: New Delhi By Order of the Board
Date: 01.09.2011

Sd/
Meenu Kapoor
Company Secretary

Note:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to
appoint a Proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself and the Proxy need not
be the member of the Company. The instrument appointing the Proxy should,
however, be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than forty-
eight hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. The Proxy Form is attached herewith.
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PROXY FORM

e e e e O e

hiM/her. ..o, OF o as my/our proxy to attend and vote
for me on my behalf at 5th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Saturday, 17th
day of September 2011 at 12.30 PM. in Board Room, 5th Floor, Pragati Maidan, Metro Station
Building Complex, New Delhi-110001 and/or at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this.............. dayof............. 2011, Signature........cccoeevevevevennene.

Ledger Folio.............. No of Sharesheld ..........cccoovvnnnnnnien.

NAMIE ettt sttt ettt nnees Re.1/-
Revenue

AAIESS . ot Stamp

NOTE:

The Proxy in order to be effective must be received by the Company at the registered office, not less
than 48 hours before the time of the meeting. The proxy need not be a member of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Ladies /Gentlemen,
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Fifth Annual Report of the Company along
with the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2011.

1. SUMMARY OF ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010-11.
The Corporation has incurred the following expenditure during the year.
A. Expenditure on Project Execution

The cumulative expenditure on Project Execution of Rs. 360.85 Crores as on 31st March,
2011. The gross expenditure during the year 2010-11 on Project Execution is Rs. 221.65
Crores, which includes direct expenditure of Rs 177.60 Crores; Overheads of Rs 40.94
Crores and taxes on Interest Income of Rs 3.11 Crores.

The Corporation has Gross Receipts of Rs 26.60 Crores during the year, which includes
interest Income of Rs 17.31 Crores (including interest on Mobilization Advance of Rs 8.74
Crores), Facility management charges & Rent Recovered on sub-lease Rs 7.57 Crores and
other Receipts Rs 1.72 Crores. Thus, the net expenditure during the year 2010-11 is Rs
201.28 Crores.

B. Investmentin Fixed Assets

The investment in Fixed Assets is Rs 18.64 Crores as on 31st March, 2011, which includes
Computers, Computer Software & Peripherals amounting to Rs 3.34 Crores, Furniture &
fixtures of Rs 1.60 Crores, Office Equipments of Rs 4.15 Crores & lease hold premises
improvement of Rs. 9.55 Crores.

2. PROGRESS OF THE PROJECT
A. Land Acquisition

During the year under review, highest priority was given to land acquisition of over 10843
hectares spread over 3353 kms for both the corridors, as it is very essential for the success
of the project. On the Eastern DFCC, it is spread over a length 1835 kms and an area of
about 4349 hectares (excluding Sonnagar to Dankuni) and on the Western DFC, it is
spread over a length of 1518 kms and an area of about 6494 hectares. Notification u/s
20A (intention to acquire the land) of Indian Railways Amendment Act (2008) have been
published for more than 2458 kms spread over 9145 hectares. Notification u/s 20E (land
vest with Central Government) of Indian Railways Amendment Act 2008 have been
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published for more than 2043 kms spread over 6760 hectares. Notification for u/s 20F
(Declaration of Compensation Award) of Indian Railways Amendment Act 2008 have
been published for more than 1275 kms spread over 3698 hectares.

B. Funding
(i) Phase |l (Vadodara — Rewari) 920 km (JICA)

Loan Agreement ID-P205 for Engineering Services Consultancy (Ph.l) for Two Billion Six
hundred six million Japanese Yen and Loan Agreement ID-P209 for construction in the
Phase | for Ninety Billion two hundred sixty two million Japanese Yen signed with JICA.

(ii) Phase Il (Vadodara — JNPT and Rewari - Dadri) 564 km (JICA)

Loan Agreement ID-P212 for Engineering Services Consultancy (Ph.Il) for One billion six
hundred sixteen million Japanese Yen signed with JICA. Loan Agreement for construction
of Phase-Il is expected to be signed in March,2012.

iii) Funding for Mughalsarai-Kanpur-Khurja-Ludhiana section (1131 Kms) of Eastern
Dedicated Freight Corridor — World Bank “in principle” agreed to finance Eastern
Dedicated Freight Corridor from Mughalsarai — Ludhiana. World Bank has approved US$
975 million loan for Phase | Project of Eastern DFC from Khurja—Bhaupur (343km).

C. Major Contracts
During the period under review, the company has the following major contracts under
progress:

Western Corridor
(A) Works/Consultancy Contracts

1. Design and Construction of Important and Major Bridges (54) of Western Freight
Corridor between Vaitarna and Uttran (approx. 200 Kms.) on Vasai-Bharuch section in the
states of Maharashtra and Gujarat, India on lump sum contract basis (Tender No.
HQ/EN/WC/Bridges/D&B/1). Out of the total No. of 54 Bridges covered under above
tender. Design has been approved for 20 Bridges and physical work is under progress on
16 Bridges.

2. Engagement of Project Management Consultants for Design and Construction of
Important and Major Bridges (54) of Western Freight Corridor between Vaitarna and
Uttran (approx. 200 Kms.) on Vasai-Bharuch section in the states of Maharashtra and
Gujarat (Tender Document No. HQ/EN/WC/Bridges/PMC/1 dated 01.10.2008.)
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(i) Engineering Consultancy Services Contract for the project, for construction of
Dedicated Freight Corridor for Phase |, between Rewari-Vadodara Section and for

feasibility study for Phase Il, between Dadri-Rewari Section and Vadodara-JNPT Section
awarded.

(i) Detailed Engineering feasibility surveys for parallel alignment between Kalol and
Palanpur (140 Km), for Detour Alignment on Surat, Dhanu Road, Vasai- Juhichandra &
Panvel, completed”.

(B) Preliminary Works Contracts
1. Design of Railway Bridges of DFCC Project between Vaitarna & Uttran.

2. Feasibility of construction of Road Over Bridges in lieu of Level crossings. “General
Arrangement Design for proposed Rail over Bridge on all level crossings having TUV's
more than 50,000 between Rewari-Jawaharlal Nehru Port Trust was prepared”.

3. General Engineering Consultancy Contract for alignment of Phase I, 922 Kms length,
between Rewari-Vadodara has been finalized, except for 140 Kms section. Pre-
Qualification invitation for Civil and Track works for 625 Kms length, out of 922 Km:s total
length, of Phase | between Rewari-Vadodara has been issued.

Eastern Corridor

(A) Works Contracts:

1. Design and Construction of formation including Blanketing, Major Bridges, Minor
Bridges, RUBs, ROBs, supply and spreading of Ballast and other related infrastructural
works for Dedicated Freight Corridor from chainage 14.108 Km (near new Karwandiya)
to chainage 119.437 Km. (Near New Ganj Khwaja) (Approximate 105 Kms) on
Mughalsarai-Sonnagar section of Eastern Corridor in the states of Bihar and Uttar
Pradesh.

Physical work between New Karwandiya to Durgawati stations is in full swing. Earth work
completed up to the end of financial year was 15 Lakh cu.mt. i.e. 60% of scope. Out of 127
Minor Bridges, casting of foundation for 61 nos., casting of Boxes of 67 nos. & 7 nos. cast
in Situ Bridges was completed. Pile work for piers for Major Bridge was completed.
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(B) Consultancy Contracts:

1. Project Management Consultancy Services to facilitate Construction of formation
including blanketing, Major Bridges, Minor Bridges, RUBs, ROBs, Supply and Spreading
of Ballast and other related infrastructural works for Dedicated Freight Corridor from
Chainage 14.108 Km (Near New Karwandiya) to Chainage 119.437 Km (Near New Ganj
Khawaja) (Approx.105 Kms.) on Mughalsarai-Sonnagar Section of Eastern Corridor in the
states of Bihar and Uttar Pradesh in India.

2. Detailed Environmental Impact Assessment of Mughalsarai-Khurja Section (about 726
Kms.) on Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor.

- Environmental Impact Assessment for Phase-lI Bhaupur-Khurja section has been
completed.

- Environmental Impact Assessment for Phase-Il Mughalsarai-Bhaupur section is
under progress.

3. Detailed Social Impact Assessment of Mughalsarai-Khurja Section (about 726 Kms.) on
Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor.

- Social Impact Assessment for Phase-I Bhaupur-Khurja section has been completed.

4. Consulting Services for Civil Engineering Proof Consultancy for Khurja-Bhaupur section
of Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor.

- Workcompleted.

5. General Consultancy Services for the Work of Double Line Electrified Railway track along
with Signaling and Telecommunication system and related infrastructure for
Bhaupur—Khurja section of Eastern DFC.

- Pre-Qualification for CST contract was invited on 14.07.2010 and Evaluation Report
submitted for World Bank approval. Draft bid document for CST Contract is under
finalization in consultation with World Bank.

6. Design Review Consultancy Services for Khurja—Bhaupur section of Eastern Dedicated
Freight Corridor.

- Review of Design Specifications for first design-build lump sum contract of
Khurja-Bhaupur section has been completed. Review of Performance Specification is
under finalization.

7. Detailed Engineering Construction Survey of the proposed alignment of the section,
preparation of land Plan and Land Acquisition Proposal as per Railway (Amendment) Act,
2008, identification of utilities & preparation of schedule of quantities for construction of
Dedicated Freight Corridor from Dankuni at Km 14.81 to Dhanbad at Km 270.88 (Approx.
route length of 256 Kms) on Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor.
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- Survey work has been completed. Preparation of land plans and land acquisition
activities are under progress.

8. Detailed Engineering Construction Survey of the proposed alignment of the section,
preparation of land Plan and Land Acquisition Proposal as per Railway (Amendment) Act,
2008, identification of utilities & preparation of schedule of quantities for construction of
Dedicated Freight Corridor from Dhanbad at Km 270.88 to Sonnagar at Km 549.04
(Approx. route length of 278 Kms.) on Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor

- Survey work of parallel portion along with Gaya Detour has been completed. Survey
work in Kodarma Detour and land related activities are in progress.

©) Tenders:

1. Design and Construction of Civil, Structures and Track Works for Double Line Railway
involving formation in Embankments/Cuttings, Ballast on Formation, Track works,
Bridges, Structures, Buildings including Testing and commissioning on Design-Build
lump sum basis for Bhaupur-Khurja section of Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor.

Pre-Qualification for above work was invited during the year. Bid preparation and
processing is under process.

3. CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As on 31st March 2011, the Authorized Share Capital of Company stands at Rs.
4000,00,00,000 (Rupees Four Thousand Crores) divided into 4,00,00,000 (Four Crores) Equity
shares of Rs. 1,000/- each.

As on 31.03.2011, the Company's paid up Share Capital was Rs 559,13,00,000 (Rupees Five
Hundred Fifty Nine Crores Thirteen Lacs) divided into 55,91,300 (Fifty Five Lac Ninety One
Thousand Three Hundred only) Equity Shares of Rs.1000/- each and Share Application
Money was Rs.108 Crores. The Paid up Capital of the Company has been enhanced on
account of equity contribution from Ministry of Railways.

4. COMPLIANCES
A. Rajbhasha (Official Language)

In order to ensure the proper implementation of the Rajbhasha (Official Language) Rules, the
Rajbhasha Cell under Mukhya Rajbhasha Adhikari ensures that special emphasis is being
given to ensure maximum use of Hindi in official dealings i.e. in office noting and
communication with other constituents has been constituted. DFCCIL, Corporate Office has
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been notified under Rule 10(4) of Official Language 1976 Rules. Rajbhasha Karyanvyan

Samiti meets every quarter. A number of steps have been taken to promote the use of
Rajbhasha i.e. printing of all the stationery, General Circulars, Land Acquisition and Gazette
notifications are being done in bilingual form. All the computers have bilingual facility.

DFCCIL Website has bilingual version.

Rajbhasha Pakhwada was organized in DFCCIL from 14.09.2010 to 28.09.2010. During the
Pakhwada, different competitions were arranged and the prizes were distributed to the
winners. Progressive use of Hindi is encouraged through various incentive schemes and
workshops.

B. Right to Information Act, 2005.

The Right to Information Act seeks to provide for setting out the practical regime of right to
information for citizens to secure access to information under the control of public
authorities, in order to promote transparency and accountability in the working of every
public authority.

The Company has appointed Central Public Information Officer, whose names are posted on
the website of the Company. During the year under review company received approx. 130 RTI
applications and all cases were disposed off within the stipulated time.

C.  MCA21E filing

In terms of Companies (Electronic Filing and Authentication of Documents) Rules, 2006, the
Company has filed all the statutory forms and returns electronically during the year under
review.

D. Memorandum of Understanding

During the period under review, in terms of the MoU Guidelines issued by Department of
Public Enterprises, a Memorandum of Understanding to be signed with Ministry of Railways
was discussed with the Task Force of Transport & Tourism Syndicate.

In terms of the MoU (2011-12) between Ministry of Railways and DFCCIL, Company is to
achieve Project related Parameters, Dynamic parameters, Corporate Social Responsibility
Parameters, Human Resource Management, Sustainable Development, Sector Specific and
Enterprise Specific Variables.

The Company has been ranked under the “Good" grading of MoU for the year 2009-2010 by
the Department of Public Enterprises.
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E. Vigilance

During the year under review, there was no full time dedicated vigilance unit. GM/Admin was
looking after as Part Time CVO upto 20.08.2010 and a multi disciplinary team was constituted
to carry out the preventive vigilance work and to investigate the complaints. Thereafter,
Executive Director/Vigilance (Accounts), Railway Board looked after the work of CVO in
addition to his own charge w.e.f. 08.09.2010 (FN) as part time CVO/DFCCIL. The Vigilance
Department administer, both preventive and as well as punitive vigilance.

In terms of the Ministry of Railways Office Memorandum No. 2010/E(O)II/39/6 dated:
22.03.2011 and Office Order No. A-22012/1/2005-Admn.| dated 11.04.2011 of Ministry of
Urban Development; a full time Chief Vigilance Officer/DFCCIL has joined Corporate Office
on 11.04.2011 (FN) on deputation terms.

The Vigilance Unit arranges Vigilance Awareness programmes. The Company observed the
Vigilance Awareness Week from 25thOctober, 2010 to 1* November, 2010. During the
Vigilance Awareness Week, Anti Corruption Oath taking ceremony was organized.

5. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND DEVELOPMENT

DFCCIL has embarked on a project to create and deploy an enterprise-wide Integrated IT
System, which will enable its core organizational business functions and provide each
employee with an environment to conduct its regular office activities more efficiently and
effectively. The proposed IT system will help DFCCIL to preserve important artifacts (plans,
drawings, notes, documents, reports etc) in a secure and manageable environment in
digitized format for eternity. DFCCIL would be working in a new environment where its
employees would have access to any business related information at the click of the mouse. In
the proposed environment, DFCCIL's CPM offices will always remain connected to the
headquarter and will never be isolated.
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The table below captures the benefits of each stakeholder/user of the enterprise-wide
Integrated IT system of DFCCIL:

System Users/ Stakeholders Benefits

Department Users Faster and structured availability of information
Well-defined workflows
Clarity of roles and responsibilities
Faster access to enterprise resources
Clean and paperless work environment.

Employees Online information on salary, income tax, pension, loans
and other benefits

Online information on HR policies, Government Notices
Secure e-mail services
Remotely available services via Internet

Audit Officials Readily available information on revenue and expense
Top ManagementDecision Support System
Integrated view of data

CPM Offices Efficient Project & Contract Management
Faster access to enterprise resources
Proper control and monitoring of financial transactions
Easy generation of reports for management reporting

Project Consultants Online access to drawings and plans
Contractors Transparent contract management
Timely clearance of bills and payments

Real-time availability of project status

MoR/ External Funding Agencies Comprehensive information on the utilization and
performance of the funds provided by them
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6. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

During the year under review, the industrial relations remained peaceful and harmonious.
The Foundation day of DFCCIL was celebrated on 30" October 2010 with austerity. On this
occasion, a cultural program was organized which was attended by various dignitaries,
Senior Railway Officers & Staff of DFCCIL.

In order to have vibrant and powerful means of dissemination of credible information,
DFFCIL introduces a quarterly newsletter captioned “DFCC News" with its inaugural issue
published on 14/02/2011. It helped in creating a productive and positive perception
amongst different stakeholders and people at large.

7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review, there was change in the composition of the Board of DFCCIL on
account of appointments and cessation, which is as follows:

1. Sh. AK. Dutta, IRSEE (DITS 30.10.1978) assumed the charge of the post of Dir (Infra)
/DFCCILon 01.04.2010.

2. Sh.D.T.Joseph, Ex-Secretary, Government of India and Sh. M. Damodaran, Ex-Chairman,
SEBI joined as Non-official part time Directors on the Board of the Company w.e.f.
14.05.2010 for a period of three years or until further orders, whichever is earlier.

3. Sh. Vivek Sahai, Chairman Railway Board joined as part time Chairman on the Board of
DFCCIL from 02.06.2010 vice Sh.S.S. Khurana.

4. Sh.R.N.Bartarya, Advisor(Infra)/ Railway Board joined as part time official Director on the
Board of DFCCIL w.e.f. 12.07.2010 in place of Sh. Pradeep Bhatnagar, Ex-Advisor (Infra),
who has since been transferred.

5. Sh.S.K. Malik, AM/CE, Railway Board was entrusted with the duties of Managing Director
/DFCCIL in addition to his own charge temporarily for a period of 60 days or until further
orders, whichever is earlier vide Railway Board's Office Order No. 2007/E(O)I1/40/5 dated
13.09.2010 and extended w.e.f. 12.11.2010 upto 30.11.2010 or until further orders,
whichever is earlier.

6. Prof. Sh. Bhaskar Gupta, Department of Telecom Engineering, Jadavpur University was
appointed as Non official part time Director on the Board of the Company by President
of India, with immediate effect from 23.11.2010 for a period of three years or until further
orders, whichever is earlier.

7. Sh. B.N. Rajasekhar, Advisor (Planning), Railway Board was entrusted with the duties of
Managing Director/DFCCIL in addition to his own duties with effect from 01.12.2010 or
until further orders vide Railway Board's Office Order No. 2007/E( O)II/40/5 dated
30.11.2010.
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8. Shri. AK. Dutta, Director (Infra)/ DFCCIL looked after the duties of the post of Managing
Director/DFCCIL, in addition to his own duties for a period commencing from 22.03.2011
t010.05.2011.

Following directors have joined the Board after the closure of the financial year
2010-2011.

1. Vide DFCCIL Office Order No. HQ/HR/PFile/293 dated 05.04.2011, Sh. Anshuman
Sharma, Ex-IRSE, GM, IRCON has joined on 05.04.2011(FN) as Director (Project Planning)
DFCCIL for a period of five years with effect from the date of assumption of charge of the
post or till the date of his superannuation or until further orders, whichever is earlier,
subject to the outcome of WP(C) 6080/2010 in Delhi High Court in the matter of Sh. B.B.
Saran.

2. Vide Railway Board's letter No. 2007/Infra/6/4/Pt.l dated: 08.04.2011, President of India
nominated Sh. Ranjan Jain, Advisor (Infra)/ Railway Board as a part time Director on the
Board of DFCCIL in place of Sh. R. N. Bartarya, Ex-Advisor(Infra), who has since
transferred.

3. Vide Railway Board's letter No. 2010/ E(O)I1/40/25 dated: 09.05.2011, President of India
has approved the appointment of Sh. RK. Gupta, CAO(Con.) Northern Railway as
Managing Director /DFCCIL on deputation basis , with exemption of the post from the
rule of immediate absorption, initially for a period of two years, which could be extended
for a total tenure of five years, on year to year basis, after annual review of performance.
He assumed the charge of Managing Director on 10.05.2011 (FN).

4. Vide Railway Board's letter No.2009/Infra/6/2 dated: 08.07.2011, President of India is
pleased to appoint the Board if DFCCIL with immediate effect vice Sh. Vinay Mittal,
Chairman Railway Board, as a part time Chairman on the Board of DFCCIL with
immediate effect.

The following Directors ceased to hold office during the financial year 2010-11.

1. Sh. V. K. Kaul, Managing Director, DFCCIL ceased to hold the office due to termination
with effect from 06.10.2010 vide Railway Board's Office order No.2007/E(O)II/40/5.

2. Sh. B. B. Saran, Dir (Project & Planning) ceased to hold office due to superannuation on
31.01.2011.

The following Directors ceased to hold office after the closure of the financial year
2010-11.

a. Sh.R. N. Bartarya, Ex-Advisor (Infra) ceased to hold the office of the part time Director
w.e.f.08.04.2011 vide Railway Board's letter No. 2007/Infra/6/4/Pt.I dated: 08.04.2011.

b. The President of India accepted the resignation of Sh. M. Damodaran from the position
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of part time official Directors on the Board of DFCCIL vide Railway Board's letter No.
2008/Infra/6/1/Pt.Il dated 08.04.2011.

c. Sh. Vivek Sahai, Ex. Chairman Railway Board ceased to hold the office of the part time
Chairman w.ef. 08.07.2011 vide Railway Board's letter No0.2007/Infra/6/4/Pt.I
dated:08.07.2011.

The following Directors are holding office as on the date of this Report:

S. No. Name of the Director Designation Date of Holding
office w.e.f.
1. Sh. Vinay Mittal Part Time Chairman (Official) 08-07-2011
2. Sh. R. K. Gupta Managing Director 10-05-2011
3. Sh. R. K. Sinha Director (Finance) 17-09-2007
4, Sh. P. N. Shukla Director (Operation & 15-10-2007
Business Development)
5% Sh. A. K. Dutta Director (Infra) 01-04-2010
6. Sh. Anshuman Sharma Director (Project Planning) 05-04-2011
7. Sh. Ranjan Jain Part Time Director (Official) 08-04-2011
8. Sh. Gajendra Haldea Part Time Director (Official) 02-05-2008
9. Sh. D. T. Joseph Part Time Director (Non official) 14-05-2010
10. Sh. Bhaskar Gupta Part Time Director (Non official) 23-11-2010

8. Auditors

M/s. Jain Chopra & Co. Chartered Accountants, New Delhi, were re-appointed as Statutory
Auditor of the Company by the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) of India for the
financial year 2010-11.

9. Auditors’ Report

The Auditors' Report submitted by M/s Jain Chopra & Co. Chartered Accountants, along with
Notes to the Accounts is self-explanatory.
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10. Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India.

The comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India on the accounts of the
Company for the year ended 31st March, 2011 forms an integral part of Annual Report 2010-
2011.

11. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earning and
Outgo.

The particulars required to be disclosed pursuant to section 217 (1) (e) of the Companies Act,
1956 read with Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors)
Rules, 1988 in respect of the Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption shall be
treated as Nil.

However, the Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo during the period under review are:

Foreign Exchange Earnings - NIL
Foreign Exchange Outgo - Rs.60,85,380/- out of which
Subscription fees for IT - Rs.18,02,486/-
Tour & Travel Expenses - Rs.2,19,938/-
Project Consultancy Services - Rs.40,62,956/-
12.  Particulars of Employees/Directors’' Remuneration.

Information as per section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies
(Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended from time to time is not required to be
disclosed as none of the employees and Directors was in receipt of remuneration in excess of
the limits prescribed therein.

The total cost of managerial remuneration during the financial year 2011-12 is
Rs. 89,32,196/- out of which total remuneration value is Rs. 64,76,254/- and the value of
perquisitesis Rs. 24,55,942/-.

13. Directors’ Responsibility Statement under Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies
Act, 1956.

As required in terms of section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Directors confirm
that:

(I) In preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanations relating to material departures.
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(i) The Directors have selected such accounting policies, applied them consistently, and
made judgment and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company for that period.

(iii) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

(iv) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

14. Corporate Governance

As per the Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by Department of Public Enterprises,
following forms an integral part of this Directors' Report.

A "Corporate Governance Report “ placed at Annexure “A" highlighting the philosophy of the
Company on the Corporate Governance, composition of Board of Directors as well as their
attendance in various meetings, remuneration of Directors etc. and other relevant
disclosures.

Certificate of compliance of Corporate Governance obtained from practicing Company
Secretary placed at Annexure “B".

A “"Management Discussion and Analysis Report” placed at Annexure “C".

15. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors wish to place on record their sincere thanks to Ministry of Railways, State
Governments, Zonal Railways, The Statutory Authorities and Government agencies for their
supportand patronage.

The Board would also like to acknowledge with thanks the co-operation extended by C&AG,
the Statutory Auditors and the Bankers of the Company.

The Board of Directors acknowledge and wish to place on record their appreciation for the
co-operation and support extended by the associates, the DFCCIL employees and others
who have extended their valued co-operation, support and guidance to the company, from

time to time.
For and on behalf of the Board
Sd/-
Place: New Delhi (Vinay Mittal)
Date:01.09.2011 Chairman
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Annexure —'A”

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1. A brief statement on Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance

The Company believes in achieving the Company's Goal and objectives through the highest
levels of transparency, accountability and equity in all spheres of its operations and in all its
dealings. The Corporate Governance is the application of best management practices,
compliance of Laws, rules, regulation and adherence standard to achieve the objects of the
Company.

The key value is to believe in “Speed, Sincerity and Success”. The Cardinal principles such as
Accountability, Responsibility, Transparency and Fair disclosures serve as the means for
achieving this.

2. Board of Directors:
2.1 Composition of the Board of Directors:

In terms of Article 80 of the Articles of Association of the Company, the President of India
has determined in writing that there shall be a total of 12 Directors on the Board of
DFCCIL. The President of India vide letter no. 2008/Infra/6/1 dated 14.05.2010 has
approved the composition of the Board of Directors of DFCCIL as follows:

« Chairman Railway Board (CRB) as a Part Time Chairman.

« Five Full Time Functional Directors including Managing Director.
«  One Nominee of Ministry of Railways.

«  One Nominee of Planning Commission.

» Four Independent Non-official Directors including one from financial institutions
depending on requirement.

2.2 Strength of the Board

On the date of the report, the total present strength of the Board of Directors of the
Company is ten comprising five whole-time Directors, one part time Chairman, two
part-time official Nominee Directors from Ministry of Railways and Planning
Commission respectively and two independent part time Non-official Directors. In
terms of Article 81 (1) (a) of the Articles of Association of the Company, The President of
India has the power to appoint Directors of the Company.
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Following directors have joined the Board after the closure of the financial year
2010-2011.

a. Vide DFCCIL office order no. HQ/HR/PFile/293 dated 05.04.2011, Shri Anshuman
Sharma Ex-IRSE, GM, IRCON has joined on 05.04.2011(FN) as Director (Project
Planning) DFCCIL for a period of five years with effect from the date of assumption
of charge of the post or till the date of his superannuation or until further orders,
whichever is earlier, subject to the outcome of WP(C) 6080/2010 in Delhi High Court
in the matter of Sh. B. B. Saran.

b. Vide Railway Board Letter No. 2007/Infra/6/4/Pt.I dated 08.04.2011, President of
India nominated Sh. Ranjan Kumar Jain, Advisor ( Infra)/ Railway Board as a part
time Director on the Board of DFCCIL in place of Sh. R. N. Bartarya , Ex-Advisor
(Infra), who hassince transferred.

c. Vide Railway Board's Letter No 2010/ E(O)II/40/25 dated 09.05.2011, President of
India approved the appointment of Shri. R.K. Gupta, CAO(Con) Northern Railway as
Managing Director /DFCCIL on deputation basis , with exemption of the post from
the rule of immediate absorption, initially for a period of two years, which could be
extended for a total tenure of five years, on year to year basis, after annual review of
performance . He assumed the charge of Managing Director on 10.05.2011 (FN).

d. Vide Railway Board's letter no. 2009/Infra/6/2 dated: 08.07.2011, President of India
is pleased to appoint Shri. Vinay Mittal, Chairman Railway Board, as a part time
Chairman on the Board of DFCCIL with immediate effect.

Following directors ceased to be on Board after the closure of the financial year
2010-2011.

a. Sh.R.N.Bartarya, ex-Adv. (Infra) ceased to hold the office of the part time Director w.e.f
08.04.2011 vide Railway Board's letter No. 2007/Infra/6/4/Pt.l dated 08.04.2011.

b.  The President of India accepted the resignation of Sh. M. Damodaran from the position
of part time official Directors on the Board of DFCCIL vide Railway Board's letter No.
2008/Infra/6/1/Pt.Il dated 08.04.2011.

c.  Sh. Vivek Sahai, ex. Chairman Railway Board ceased to hold the office of the part time
Chairman w.e.f. 08.07.2011 vide Railway Board's letter no. 2007/Infra/6/4/Pt.I dated
08.07.2011.
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The composition of the Board of DFCCIL, on the date of report, along with Directorships held by

them and their attendance in the Board meetings held during the financial year 2010-2011 and the

last Annual General Meeting is tabled below:

S. No. Category of Name of Number of Total No. of No of No. of Last
Directors Directors/ Date of  Directorships Committee Board Board AGM
Appointment /Chairmanshi Memberships/ Meetings meetings attended
ps in public  chairmanships held attended
companies in public during
including companies 2010-
DFCCIL and including 2011
excluding DFCCIL and (during
private excluding their
Companies private respective
1&5 companies 4 &  tenures)
5
(I) Chairman (Part-time official)
1. Chairman/ Sh. Vivek Sahai As Chairman- Nil 5 5 Yes
Railway Board (held office from 3
Held office upto 02.06.2010)
30.06.2011
2. Chairman/ Sh. Vinay Mittal NA NA NA NA NA
Railway Board (held office from
08.07.2011)
(1) Whole-time Director
1 Managing Director ~ Sh. V.K. Kaul 1 Nil 4 3 No
(held officceup to = (held office from
06.10.2010) 15.09.2007)
1(a) Looking after Sh. S.K. Malik 1 Nil 1 1 Yes
Managing Director ~ (Held office from
(held officeupto ~ 13.09.2010)
30.11.2010)
1(b) Looking after Sh. B.N. Rajasekhar 1 Nil 2 2 NA
Managing Director  (Held office from
( held office up to 01.12.2010)
14.03.2011)
1(¢) Looking after Sh. AK. Dutta 1 Nil 1 1 NA
Managing Director  (Held office from
( held office up to 22.03.2011)
10.05.2011)
1(d) Managing Director ~ Sh. RK. Gupta NA NA NA NA NA
(Held office from
10.05.2011)
2. Director (Finance) Sh. RK. Sinha 1 Nil 6 6 Yes
(Held office from
17.09.2007)
3. Director Sh. PN. Shukla 1 Nil 6 6 Yes
(Operations & (Held office from
Business 15.10.2009)

Development)
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official

Gupta
(held office from
23.11.2010))

ANNUAL REPORT 2010-11

Director (Project Sh. B.B. Saran Nil Yes
Planning ) (Held office from
19.06.2008 to
31.01.2011)
Director (Project Sh. Anshuman NA NA
Planning ) Sharma (Held
office from
05.04.2011)
Director (Infra) Sh. AK. Dutta Nil No
(held office from
01.04.2010)
(111) Director (Part-time official)
Adviser (Traffic) Sh. Pradeep As Chairman-1 NA
Railway Board( Bhatnagar
held office up to ( held office from
12.07.2010 28.02.2008)
Adviser (Infra) Sh. R.N. Bartarya As Chairman-1 Yes
/Railway Board (held office from
(held office up to 12.07.2010)
08.04.2011)
Advisor Sh. Ranjan Kumar NA NA
(Infrastructure) Jain
/Railway Board (held office from
08.04.2011)
Advisor of Deputy ~ Sh. Gajendra Nil Yes
Chairman, Haldea
Planning (held office from
Commission 02.05.2008)
(IV) Independent Directors ( Part Time non official )
Part Time non- Sh. D.T. Joseph Audit Committee No
official (held office from ( Member) -3
14.05.2010) Audit Committee
( Chairman)-2
Shareholders
Grievance
(Member)-1
Part Time non- Sh. M. Damodaran Audit Committee No
official (held office from (Member) -3
14.05.2010 to Audit Committee
08.04.2011) (Chairman)-2
Shareholders
Grievance
(Member)-1
Part Time non Prof. Sh. Bhaskar NA NA
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NOTES:

1.

The Directorships and memberships in the Committees being held by the Directors are within
the limits laid down under Companies Act, 1956. For the purpose of Section-275 of
Companies Act 1956, the Directorship in a private company which is neither a subsidiary nor
a holding company of a public company is excluded.

The term “part-time official” indicates the Government nominee Directors on the Board of
DFCCIL who are the officials of the Ministry of Railways and Planning Commission.

The term “part time non official” means the Independent Directors.

For the purpose of considering the limit of the Committees on which a Director can serve, all
public limited companies, whether listed or not, is included.

For the purpose of reckoning the limit for chairmanship/membership, the Audit Committee
and the Shareholders' Grievance committee alone is taken.

The word "NA" denotes “Not Applicable” as either the concerned Directors have joined the
Board after the financial year 2010-11 or the relevant parameter has not fallen due during
their tenure.

During the financial year 2010-2011, the Board of Directors met six times to transact the business and

have complied with the provisions of Companies Act, 1956 read with the DPE guidelines relating to

Board Meetings. In all cases of absence of Director, Leave of Absence was granted under clause (g) of
sub section (1) of section 283 of the Companies Act, 1956. The meetings of the Board of Directors of

DFCCIL were held on following dates as mentioned below:

S. No. Quarter Dates

1. For the quarter ended June 2010 12.05.2010, 25.06.2010
2. For the quarter ended September 2010 02.07.2010, 29.09.2010
3. For the quarter ended December 2010 16.12.2010

4. For the quarter ended March 2011 26.02.2011

Brief Resume of Directors appointed after the financial year 2010-2011.

I) Sh.Anshuman Sharma, Director (Project Planning), DFCCIL, w.e.f. 05.04.2011

Sh. Anshuman Sharma belongs to 1984 Batch of IRSE. He has a Bachelors' Degree in Civil
Engg. and Masters' Degree in STRUCTURES from University of Roorkee (Now IIT, Roorkee).
He is a Bridge design and execution specialist with 16 years experience in planning and
execution of Railway Construction projects. He was in-charge for maintenance of Civil Engg.
assets and co-ordination of various divisional activities of Secunderabad and Guntakal
divisions of Indian Railways for 7 years. He has published various technical papers on Bridge
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Construction techniques. He has attended various national and international seminars
including International Convention on Optimizing the Wheel/Rail System at Salzburg,
Austria and China Rail World Summit at Beijing. He was associated in design and execution of
3rd Godawari Bridge consisting of 28 spans of 100m Bow String Arch Bridge. He was actively
associated with construction of J&K Rail link project, which involved construction of 11.0 Km
long tunnel across Pir Panjal range. He had worked as supervisory Board member for various
DMRC projects executed by IRCON. He received Railway Ministers Award in 1995 for
completing the execution of 100 Km long construction project, which included two
Important bridges of each more than 700m length in a record time of 8 months.

ii) Sh.Ranjan Kumar Jain, Part time Official Director, DFCCIL w.e.f. 08.04.2011

Sh. RK. Jain, Officer of 1978 batch of Indian Railway Traffic Service has joined as Adviser
(Infrastructure), Railway Board on 28.03.2011. He is an engineering graduate in Electronics
and Communication from IIT Roorkee. Sh. R.K. Jain is the nodal officer for the Dedicated
Freight Corridor Project in Railway Ministry. His current assignment also includes long term
planning for Infrastructure creation over Indian Railways, coordination forimplementation of
PPP Projects, International Railway Cooperation and developing Long Range Decision
Support System (LRDSS) for Railways. He also represents Indian Railways on the Board of
Directors of International Heavy Haul Association (IHHA), USA.

Besides, he is also a member of Steering Committees formed as per MOUs between Indian
Railways and few foreign Railways of Germany, France, China, South Africa, Austria, Russia,
Italy and Korean Railway etc.

In his career of over 32 years with Indian Railways, he has worked extensively at Divisional and
Zonal levels. Before joining as Adviser (Infrastructure), he has worked as Executive Director
(Perspective Planning)/Railway Board, Director (Operation), Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, Chief
Administrative Officer, FOIS & Director Planning, Railway Board.

iii) Sh.R.K. Gupta, Managing Director, DFCCIL w.e.f. 10.05.2011

Sh. RK. Gupta is an Officer of 1977 Batch of Indian Railway Service of Engineers. He
graduated in Civil Engineering from the erstwhile University of Roorkee (now IIT, Roorkee).
He also holds Masters Diploma in Public Administration. He has worked on Indian Railways
in many capacities and on various important positions on Northern Railway, North Central
Railway, North Eastern Railway, Northeast Frontier Railway, South Eastern Railway, and
Railway Board including that of Executive Director, Divisional Railway Manager, and Principal
Chief Engineer. Prior to joining Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation in May 2011, Sh.
Gupta was heading the prestigious New Line Rail Project in the State of Jammu and Kashmir
as Chief Administrative Officer. This project is one of the most difficult projects in terms of
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logistics and terrain in the world and majority of the alignment passes through tunnels and

very high and long bridges. Sh. Gupta has been associated with various Expert Groups
including that of UN sponsored Expert Group on improvement in 'Project Management' on

Indian Railways and the UK sponsored project on 'Strategies for Bridge Rehabilitation' on

Indian Railways. Sh. Gupta has done considerable work on 'Mechanization of Track
Maintenance' on Indian Railways. He has been trained in India and abroad in various fields

and has visited many countries in this connection.

iv) Sh.Vinay Mittal, Part time Chairman, DFCCILw.e.f. 08.07.2011

Sh. Vinay Mittal is an Officer of Indian Railway Traffic Service 1975 batch. Before taking over
as Chairman Railway Board, he has been working as General Manager, South Eastern Railway,
and prior to that as General Manager, North Western Railway. He also worked as Additional
General Manager, Central Railway. In his distinguished career with the Railways, he has held
many important posts such as Divisional Railway Manager-Bilaspur, Chief Passenger
Transportation Manager, Chief Freight Transportation Manager, Chief Commercial Manager,
Chief Operations Manager of Central Railway and Executive Director, Traffic Transportation
(Movement) in Railway Board. During his tenure as the Chief Operations Manager, Central
Railway could achieve highest ever freight loading. He is also credited with significant
improvement in punctuality performance of suburban and non-suburban trains. He was part
of the Indian delegations, which visited USA and China in 2005-06, in connection with
Wagon/Bogie design and Freight Operations.

3. Audit Committee
Composition of the Audit Committee

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors was originally constituted on 14.03.2008 and was
reconstituted from time to time. During the year under review, the Audit Committee was re-
constituted as under in line with section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the DPE
guidelines.

On 25.06.2010, the Committee was reconstituted by inducting Sh. D.T. Joseph, Sh. M.
Damodaranand Sh.Pradeep Bhatnagar asits members.

By induction of Sh. R.N. Bartarya, Advisor (Infra)/ Railway Board in place of Sh. Pradeep
Bhatnagar, Advisor (Traffic)/ Railway Board - Part time official Director /DFCCIL, the Audit
Committee was reconstituted by way of resolution passed by circulation on 07.09.2010. The
resolution was confirmed at the Board meeting held on 29.09.2010.

In view of Railway Board's letter No. 2007/Infra/6/4/Pt.| dated 08.04.2011, nominating
Sh. Ranjan Kumar Jain, Advisor (Infra)/ Railway Board as a part time Director on the Board of
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DFCCILin place of Sh. R. N. Bartarya, Ex-Advisor(Infra), who has since transferred and Railway
Board's letter No. 2008/Infra/6/1/Pt. Il dated 08.04.2011, accepting the resignation of Sh. M.
Damodaran from the position of part-time official Directors/DFCCIL, the Audit Committee of
the Board was reconstituted by way of resolution passed by circulation on 23.04.2011 and
was confirmed at the Board meeting held on 27.04.2011.

The composition of the Audit Committee as on date is as follows.

S.No. Member Position Date of holding the
membership of the Committee

1. Sh. D. T. Joseph Chairman 25.06.2010

2. Sh. Ranjan Kumar Jain Member 23.04.2011

3. Sh. Bhaskar Gupta Member 23.04.2011

The Committee acts in accordance with the terms of reference of the Board (14.03.2008)
whichis:

«  Todiscuss with the auditors periodically about internal control systems.
«  Todiscuss and decide about the scope of audit including the observations of auditors.

« To review the half-yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the
Board and ensure compliance of internal control systems.

« To investigate into any matter relating to financial management including the audit
report.

« To appoint an internal Auditor and to set the terms and conditions of appointment,
including the remuneration payable and

*  Anyother matter brought to the notice of the Audit Committee by Board of Directors.

Additional Terms of Reference for the Audit Committee re-constituted on 25.06.2010
The role of the Audit Committee shall include the following:

1.  Oversight of the company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient, and credible.

2. Recommending to the Board the fixation of audit fees.

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the
statutory auditors.

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to
the Board for approval.
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Matters required to be included in the Directors' Responsibility Statement to be
included in the Board's report in terms of clause (2AA) of section 217 of the Companies
Act, 1956;

« Changes, ifany, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

« Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management;

 Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit
findings;

« Compliance with legal requirements relating to financial statements;
« Disclosure of any related party transactions; and
« Qualifications in the draft audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission
to the Board for approval.

Reviewing, with the management, performance of internal auditors and adequacy of
the internal control systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the
internal audit department, staffing, and seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure, coverage and frequency of internal audit.

Discussion with internal auditors and/or auditors any significant findings and follow up
there on.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal
auditors/auditors/agencies into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or
a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the
Board.

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and
scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors,
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non -payment of declared dividends) and
creditors.

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism.
To review the follow up action on the audit observations of the C&AG audit.

To review the follow up action taken on the recommendations of Committee on Public
Undertakings (COPU) of the Parliament.
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16. Provide an open avenue of communication between the independent auditor, internal
auditor and the Board of Directors

17. Review all related party transactions in the company. For this purpose, the Audit
Committee may designate a member who shall be responsible for reviewing related
party transactions.

Explanation: The term “related party transactions” shall have the same meaning as contained
in the Accounting Standard 18, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

18. Review with the independent auditor the co-ordination of audit efforts to assure
completeness of coverage, reduction of redundant efforts, and the effective use of all
audit resources.

19. Considerand review the following with the independent auditor and the management:

- The adequacy of internal controls including computerized information system
controls and security, and

- Related findings and recommendations of the independent auditor and internal
auditor, together with the management responses.

20. Consider and review the following with the management, internal auditor and the
independent auditor:

- Significant findings during the year, including the status of previous audit
recommendations

- Any difficulties encountered during audit work including any restrictions on the
scope of activities or access to required information.

21. Carrying outany otherfunction asis mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit.

During the year under review, the Committee met 2 times on the following dates 27.12.2010,
11.02.2011.

The attendance of the members of the Committee during 2010-2011 is produced below:

Member Position Meeting held** Meeting attended ***
Sh. M. Damodaran Chairman 2 1
Sh. D. T. Joseph Member 2 2
Sh. R. N. Bartarya Member 2 2

**“Meeting held”- denotes the number of meetings held during the tenure of the member of
the Committee.

*** “Meeting attended”- denotes the number of meetings attended by the member during
his tenure.
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4. Remuneration Committee

i) In terms of Chapter 5 of the DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance, the
Remuneration Committee of the Board comprising Sh. D.T. Joseph, Sh. M. Damodaran
and Sh. Gajendra Haldea, Part Time Directors of the Company as its members was
constituted on 25.06.2010.

In view of Railway Board's letter No. 2008/Infra/6/1/Pt.Il dated 08.04.2011, accepting
the resignation of Sh. M. Damodaran from the position of part time official
Directors/DFCCIL, the Remuneration Committee of the Board was reconstituted in line
with the DPE guidelines by way of resolution passed by circulation on 23.04.2011 and
was confirmed at the Board meeting held on 27.04.2011.

As on date of the report, the Remuneration Committee of the Board comprises Sh. D.T.
Joseph, Sh. Bhaskar Gupta and Sh. Gajendra Haldea, Part Time Directors of the Company
as its members. Remuneration Committee will decide the annual bonus/variable pay
pool and policy for its distribution across the executives and non-unionized supervisors,
within the prescribed limits. The Committee will be headed by an Independent
Director”.

ii) Remuneration of Directors

DFCCIL, being a wholly owned Government Company under Companies Act, 1956, the
whole-time Directors of the Company are appointed by President of India through
Ministry of Railways. The functional Directors so appointed, draw remuneration under
Industrial Dearness Allowance (IDA) pattern of pay scale pre-determined by the
Government and as per the terms and conditions issued by Government of India from
time to time. The IDA pay scales (2007) and basket of allowances has been implemented
in DFCCIL.

The part-time official (Government Nominee) Directors on the Board of the Company
do not draw any remuneration from the Company. They draw remuneration from the
Government only as Government officials. The part time non-official Directors
(Independent) draws the sitting fee for the Board meetings attended.
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Disclosure on Remuneration package of whole time Directors:

S.No. Name of the Salary & Other Performance  Retirement Bonus/  Total (in Rs.)
Director Allowances Benefits Linked Benefits Commission
(In Rs.) Perks Incentives /Ex-gratia
(In Rs.) (In Rs.)
1 Sh. V. K. Kaul 12,11,813 5,31,830 0.00 0.00 00.00 17,43,643
Managing
Director
2 Sh. R. K. Sinha 20,11,334 597,790 0.00 0.00 00.00 26,09,124
Director
(Finance)
3 Sh. B. B. Saran 17,20,716 4,98,214 0.00 0.00 00.00 22,18,930
Director( PP)
4 Sh. PN. Shukla 20,79,093 7,14,463 0.00 0.00 00.00 27,93,556
Director
(Opn. & BD)
5 Sh. AK. Dutta 19,09,240 1,13,645 0.00 0.00 00.00 20,22,885
Director (Infra)
GENERAL MEETINGS

Annual General Meetings

The Annual General Meetings of the Company are held at New Delhi, where the registered
office of the Company is situated. The details of such meetings held during the last three
years are as under:

AGM Year Venue Date Time

2nd

3rd

4th

2007-2008 Committee Room No.1, 2™ Floor, 21.07.2008 3.00 PM
Rail Bhawan, Raisina Road, New Delhi-110001.

2008-2009  Board Room, Corporate Office, 5" Floor 15.09.2009 3.30 PM
Pragati Maidan Metro Station
Building Complex, New Delhi-110001

2009-2010 Committee Room, 2™ Floor, Rail Bhawan, 29.09.2010 5.00 PM
Raisina Road, New Delhi-110001
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Detail of special resolutions passed in the previous three AGMs.

AGM Year Subject Matter of the Special Resolution Date Time

2" 2007-2008  Pursuant to section 31 of the Companies Act, 21.07.2008 3.00 PM
1956 and subject to the approval from the
concerned authority, if any, consent of the
members was accorded to alter the Articles
of Association of the Company by way of a
Special Resolution.

3" 2008-2009 NIl 15.09.2009 3.30 PM

4" 2009-2010 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 293(1)(d)  29.09.2010 5.00 PM
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act 1956, the consent of the
Company was accorded to the Board of
Directors of the Company to borrow money.

5. Disclosures
A. There has not been a materially significant related party transaction.

B. The Company has not been imposed penalty by any statutory authority as a result of
non-compliance.

C. The Company has complied with the guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by
Department of Public Enterprises. In accordance with the guidelines, DFCCIL evolved a
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for its Board Members and Senior Management
Personnel and has included Corporate Governance and Management Discussion and
Analysis Reportin the Directors Report for the year 2010-2011.

D. Allitems of expenditure debited in the books of accounts of DFCCIL are for the purpose
of project execution entrusted to DFCCIL and are related to project execution.

E. Thereare no personal expenses incurred for the Board of Directors.

F.  The administrative expenses as a percentage of total expenses have decreased from
20.69% in 2009-2010t0 8.93%in 2010-11.

6. Means of Communication

The company communicates with its shareholders through its Annual Report, General
Meeting and disclosures through website. The audited annual financial results and Annual
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Report are displayed on DFCCIL website at www.dfccil.org. Information and latest updates on
Tenders/EOIs, details of tenders/contracts awarded, press releases, Mission and objectives of
the Company can be accessed at Company's website. Company publishes its quarterly
Newsletter.

7. Audit Qualifications

The Company has been putting all the efforts towards ensuring that financial statements are
prepared in the most transparent manner resulting in unqualified financial statements. There
have been no significant qualifications.

8. Training of Board Members

DFCCIL is concerned to take various training programmes for its officers/ employees. In order
to acquaint the Board Members, presently the Corporation has adopted the practice of
furnishing a set of documents/ booklets to a Director on his/ her joining the Board. The set of
documents provided includes Annual Reports for the last financial years, Memorandum and
Articles of Association, a copy of the Memorandum of Understanding and MOU targets and
achievements. This provides the basic information about the Company to the incumbent.
Besides that Board members and Senior Management personnel are nominated for various
training programmes, from time to time.

9. Code of Business Conduct & Ethics

The Company has in place the Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Level
Management duly approved by the Board of Directors. The duly approved Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics for Board members and Senior Management came into force w.e.f. 1st
day of April 2009. In terms of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, the annual affirmation
that Code of Conduct has been complied with has been obtained from all the Board
members and Senior Management Personnel. A declaration signed by the Managing
Director affirming the compliance with the Code of Conduct by the Board members and
Senior Management Personnel during 2010-2011 is placed at Annexure-" D". The Code of
Conductis also posted on the Website of the Company www.dfcc.in.

10. Compliance Certificate

The Certificate from a practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance of the conditions
of Corporate Governance in accordance with the guidelines issued by Department of Public
Enterprises forms the part of the Annual Report.
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Annexure —"B”

l]s Ashish Kumar Gupta

Company Secretary

Address: A-16, Jitar Nagar, Parwana Road, Delhi-110051
Phone: 011-22025417, 9312210264

E-mail: guptaashish75@gmail.com

To the Members of

M/s. Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Limited
Regd Office: Room No 101/A,

Rail Bhawan, Raisina Road,

New Delhi-110001

REG: COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE WITH REFERENCE TO COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE UNDER GUIDELINES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR
CENTRAL PUBLIC SECTOR ENTERPRISES 2010

1. This Certificate is in accordance with compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by
M/s. Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Limited. (Hereinafter referred to as
“Company”) for the Financial year ended on 31" March, 2011 as stipulated in the Guidelines
issued for Central Public Sector Enterprises 2010 effective from May 2010 (Hereinafter
referred to as “Guidelines”).

2. The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
Management. My examination is limited to review of procedures and implementation
thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said guidelines. It is neither an audit and nor an
expression of opinion of the financial statement of the Company. My responsibility is to carry
out an examination, on the basis of my professional judgment so as to award a reasonable
assurance of the correctness and completeness of the records for the purpose of this
certificate.

3. I have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of certification and have been provided with such
records, documents, certifications etc as had been required by me.

4. | certify that in respect of the aforesaid financial year ended 31st March 2011, the company
has complied with various provisions of the Guidelines in its Corporate Governance Report
except:

a) Clause No. 3.2relating to composition of Board of Directors - Nominee Directors
b) Clause No. 3.6 relating to integration and alignment of Risk Management System.
5. | hereby state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

Sd/-
Place: Delhi Ashish Kumar Gupta
Date : 08.09.2011 Company Secretary
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Annexure —"C"

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANAYLSIS REPORT

Industry Structure and Developments

Indian economy is on a high growth trajectory and it is globally acknowledged as one of the fastest
growing economy. It continued to outperform most emerging markets during 2010-11 retaining its
position as the second fastest growing economy after China. The growth during 2010-11 reflects a
rebound in agriculture and sustained levels of activity in industry and services. GDP growth for the
11th Planis likely to be 8.2%, which though below than the target of 9% is a remarkable achievement
given the worst drought in 30 years. The index for 8 core infrastructure industries (comprising coal,
crude oil, natural gas, petroleum refinery products, fertilizers, electricity, cement and finished carbon
steel) with a weight of 37.9% in the IIP grew at 5.7% in 2010-11 compared to 6.6% in 2009-10.
Growth in GDP for transport sector has kept pace with overall GDP growth. Railways have
maintained a growth higher than overall GSP growth since 2005-06. Growth in Rail traffic leads to an
increase in both passenger and freight revenues allowing rail GDP to keep trace with the growth in
overall GDP. Development of rail infrastructure plays very important role for development of
economy of the Country. Railway is most environment friendly transport infrastructure especially
with respect to green house gas emission.

Recognizing the need for a quantum leap in the Railways' transportation capacity for ensuring a
sustainable growth of the national economy, the Ministry of Railways had embarked on a long-term,
strategic plan to construct high capacity, high-speed, dedicated freight corridors along the golden
quadrilateral and its diagonals. “Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Limited (DFCCIL)" is
a Special Purpose Vehicle created to undertake planning & development, mobilization of financial
resources and construction, maintenance and operation of Dedicated Freight lines covering
approximately 3373 route kilometers on two Corridors - Eastern Corridor from Ludhiana to
Dankuni, and Western Corridor from Jawahar Lal Nehru Port, Mumbai to Tughlakabad/ Dadri along
with interlinking of the two corridors at Dadri. DFCCIL is a Schedule —'A" Central Public Sector
Enterprise under the administrative control of Ministry of Railways. As on date, the Ministry for
construction has sanctioned only two corridors; however, feasibility studies for an additional four
corridors have already been initiated.

Strength

Construction of dedicated freight corridor on critical routes will enable Railways to provide
additional capacity in the shortest possible time and to regain its market shares from the roads
sector. Once completed, these corridors will provide a quantum jump in the freight capacity with
improvement in quality of service at reduced unit cost, with transfer of freight traffic to DFCCIL.
Railway will be able to utilize spare capacity to increase number of passenger trains and that to with
increase in average speed. With independent infrastructure, DFCCIL will be able to deploy modern
maintenance practices resulting in reduction in operation and maintenance cost. With the blessing
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of Ministry of Railway, DFCCIL has access to experienced manpower of Indian Railways, which can be
deployed, for timely execution of such large infrastructure project.

Weakness

With a route Km of 3373 which is passing from the state of West Bengal, Jharkhand, Bihar, U.P,
Haryana, Punjab in Eastern Corridor and U.P, Haryana, Rajasthan, Gujarat, Maharashtra in Western
Corridor and land being state subject DFCC has a man-o-moth task to acquire land following various
guidelines by State Governments/Zonal Railways, Central Government, provision of NRRP 2007, and
requirement of funding agencies with respect to environmental and social considerations and
expectations of project affected parties. Time bound execution of the project might be hindered on
account of delays in getting approvals from the concerned authorities. Further, funds are to be
provided by bilateral/ multi-lateral agencies in the form of loan and because of various covenants,
which have to be adhered to, there may be additional costs/ delays.

DFCCIL will need to rely on Ministry of Railways for meeting its Human Resource Requirements. The
staff and officers are borrowed from Ministry of Railways and they are deployed to DFCCIL for a
limited tenure. As such, a high manpower churn is expected and this will imply that a lot of tacit
knowledge acquired during the period of deputation, will be lost once the officer leaves the
organization.

Opportunity

The Dedicated Freight Corridor, being a Greenfield network meant solely for freight operations and
with limited interfacing with the existing IR network, provides the opportunity for the adoption of
international best practices and innovation in terms of technology, systems and process and business
operations that would otherwise have been difficult had it been conceived as a totally integrated
facility within Indian Railways. DFCCIL has the opportunity to provide latest technology in every field
of Railway infrastructure with lower overall operational and maintenance cost with increased
reliability of asset and increased service life. DFC project will bring about a quantum leap in rail
transport capacity, efficient technology, and operational efficiency, contributing to national
economy both directly and indirectly. Most important, DFCCIL has a great opportunity to build world
class infrastructure that has the capability of bringing about a paradigm shift in the transportation
sector in India. Proposed DFC being environment friendly activity, DFCCIL may get both EDFC &
WODFC registered as CDM Projects with UNFCCC under Kyoto Proto cost to earn substantial carbon
credit.

Threats

Being a time consuming procedure, non-availability of land required under the project in time
hinders the execution of national projects like DFC, resulting in cost and time overrun. Delay in
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funding for the development of the project through loans from multilateral/bilateral lending
agencies is also one of the serious threats posed by any project-implementing agency. In order to
ensure delivery of the project on time coordinated efforts are required among all the stake holders
and the parties involved in the projects i.e. Ministry of Railways, Planning Commission, Ministry of
Finance, State Governments, Japan International Co-operation Agency, World Bank - and each must
perform its obligations in time to ensure that DFCs get constructed in time and within the estimated
completion cost. Further, short tenures in DFCCIL by staff deputed from Railways may pose a
challenge of continuity. Finally, in projects of this size and scale, there is always a possibility of
changing specifications and standards mid course, or modifying design parameters, or alignment or
Ministry issuing instructions that may have far-reaching implications for the project.

Strategies

To ensure the timely execution of the project, DFCCIL will implement its HR-Plan and provide
required skill manpower in a time-bound manner. Various ways and means of attracting and
retaining talent, training delivery methods, the road map towards achieving organizational culture
and values, the strategy for ensuring performance evaluation, discipline, maintenance of labour
relations and conflict resolution, manner of regulating the employees severance from the
organization, assessment of HR budgetary needs, various systems of HR enhancement, etc. forms the
part of the HRD Plan. As the Land to be acquired under the project will be owned by the Ministry of
Railways as its asset, DFCCIL is facilitating in the process of acquisition in different States. In process of
acquisition,  Corporation is committed to ensure compliance with National Rehabilitation and
Resettlement Policy adopted by the Government of India, applicable regulations and to obtain
necessary approvals. Wherever DFC is expected to pass through Wildlife Sanctuary/National Park,
early action to seek clearance from competent Authority would save time. Efforts would be made to
secure detailed Social Impact & Environmental Impact Assessment (SIA & EIA) of the Project.

DFCCIL also plans to adopt a contracting strategy that ensures an open and transparent pre-
qualification criteria and an efficient and equitable bid process management. The contracting
strategy is designed to ensure equitable distribution of risks and minimal integration issues between
and among contractors. In order to maintain a check on time/cost overruns a system of penalty and
rewards in being institutionalized as part of the contract agreement. Most contracts will be lump-
sum fixed price design-build contracts so that the project gets completed in time and within cost.

Due to large number of representations alignment at Chandauli (40 Kms.) and Tundla detour (73
Kmes.) in Eastern Corridor and Igbalgarh to Kalol section (140 Kms.), Surat detour (25 Kms.) and Panvel
detour (25 Kms.) of Western Corridor has been modified. The earlier alignments were mostly on
detours now the modified alignment is mostly on parallel with some small detours. In total
approximately 300 Kms. of alignment was re-surveyed and modified. With this alignment, DFCC
could save approximately 1100 hectares of the land amounting to Rs.300 Crores. approx.
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Outlook

As the dedicated agency to make the vision into reality, DFCCIL's outlook is to achieve the mission
to build a corridor with appropriate technology that enables Indian Railways to regain its market
share of freight transport by creating additional capacity and guaranteeing efficient, reliable, safe
and cheaper options for mobility to its customers and to support the government's initiatives toward
ecological sustainability by encouraging users to adopt railways as the most environment friendly
mode for their transport requirements.

While adhereing to the mission, DFCCIL is commited to deliver the project within the budgeted
timelines and costs and to make additional line capacity available to IR for running freight trains and
assure safe and reliable train operations. Reduction in cost of operations by adopting international
best practices including long haul/heavy haul operations is the another objective to be achieved .

More importantly, it aims at bringing out a paradigm shift in the way construction projects,
managed, and monitored and also in the maintenance and operation practices that will be adopted,
posts implementation. DFCCIL aims at creating an inflexion point in the future road map of Indian
Railways and the Indian economy.

Based on its arrangement with MoR and on its own internal strength, the company has been rated as
AAA and AAA-SO by CRISILand ICRA respectively.

Road Ahead

. DFCCIL is committed to its motto of 'SSS’ - 'Sincerity, Speed and Success’ which would lead
to fulfillment of Organization's Mission, Vision and Objectives.

Risks and Concerns

The delivery of a project of this magnitude and complexity can be achieved in the mono-drive mode
as against a multi drive mode generally prevalent in small & simple project consisting of well-tried
elements of work. The mono drive project implementation mode essentially would require 3 'C's
Clarity, Conviction & Courage to be able to take decision with clarity, implement with conviction and
have courage for actions to be taken. The organization and capacity building is to be done
accordingly. Short tenures in DFCCIL by staff deputed from Railways may pose a challenge of
continuity till the Corporation is able to develop its own capacity. Contracting strategies and systems,
land acquisition, Rehabilitation & Resettlement, project-monitoring mechanisms are quite different
on DFCCIL in comparison to Indian Railways and there is a steep learning curve for these areas. As
such, constant manpower turnover may seriously affect the progress of various works in DFCCIL.
There are concerns related to availability of land in time. Further, tying up all funding resources for
Sonnagar-Dankuni section of the project may affect the pace of theimplementation of the project.
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Internal Control Systems

In any organisation, internal control being an integral process effected by an entity's management
and personnel is designed to address risks and to provide reasonable assurance that in pursuit of
entity's mission, the general objectives of executing the operations more orderly, ethically,
economically, efficiently and effectively is achieved and the resources are safeguarded against loss,
misuse and damage.

The company has internal systems and processes in place, which ensures the execution of operation
more orderly, ethically, economically, efficiently, and effectively, which is adequate and
commensurate with the size of the Company. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors also
reviews the reports of the Internal Auditor, comments of the Statutory Auditor and the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India. The management reviews the findings and recommendations of the
auditors, takes corrective actions wherever necessary, and monitors the implementation of the
recommendations.

Human Resource Development and Industrial relations

Human Resource department of any organization serves as the backbone of the Organization.
Amongst other two “M's i.e. Money and Machines, the 'Manpower" is the asset of the organization
which with the help of other two M's helps to achieve organizational Goals and objectives in line with
its mission and vision. The HR department's vision is to act as a strategic business partner in
developing programs and practices that would make DFCCIL as a model employer. The HR
department endeavors to serve the company through alignment of HR policies with organizational
goals, effective leadership, professional expertise, and quality consultation. The Mission of the HR
department is to serve the interests of the organization by supporting, developing, and protecting
its most valuable resource—People.

a) Human Resource Development Plan:

Keeping these HR Vision and Mission in mind the HRD plan envisage a lean manpower
organization with staff and managers having functional rather than linear responsibilities.
DFCCIL will use the state of the art technology and thereby limiting the need of staff strength.
Accordingly, sourcing of manpower in a phased manner with different staffing pattern for
construction and operational phase has been planned. A three tier organizational structure
and establishment of a specialized training institute has been proposed. Various ways and
means of attracting and retaining talent, training delivery methods, the road map towards
achieving organizational culture and values, the strategy for ensuring performance
evaluation, discipline, maintenance of labour relations and conflict resolution, manner of
regulating the employees severance from the organization, periodical audit of HR policies
and programs, assessment of HR budgetary needs, various systems of HR enhancement, etc.
are part of the HRD Plan.
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b) HRPolicies:

Various policies notified by HR are Open Market Recruitment Policy, Absorption Policy (DGM
and below), Revised Deputation Policy, Re-employment/Re-engagement Policy, Bungalow
Peon (TADK) Policy, IDA Pay Scale Structure and Allowances, Policy on various Perks and
Benefits, Revised Rental ceiling for Lease Accommodation and the method of executing fresh
lease deeds, Provision of medical equipments/outdoor treatment/investigations and
reimbursement procedure in the medical rules.

c¢) Training Need Analysis/Specialized Training Institute:

DFCCIL will be involved in capacity building within the organization for housekeeping and
other management area in the next couple of years. Therefore, training need analysis in the
following area has been undertaken:

Corporate work culture, general management and administration, financial rules and
procedures, planning, estimation, project preparation, corporate governance best practices,
contract management, facilitation of works, avoidance management of disputes, rules and
position of lump-sum contract, FIDIC yellow book conditions, etc.

During the year under review, the industrial relations remained harmonious and cordial.

Corporate Social Responsibility

With the rapidly changing corporate environment, Corporation is adopting CSR as a strategic tool
for sustainable growth. It means not only investment of funds for social activities but also
integration of business processes with social processes. Corporation has formulated long term
Corporate Social Plan specifying the following:

(@) DFCCIL's CSRVision,

(b) CSRpolicy statement

(c) Areastobecovered under Social responsibility

(d) Thelmplementation approach and construction of a CSR Committee.

The CSR plan envisages Broad Guidelines and Parameters for implementation, Monitoring, and
Evaluation techniques. Corporation is committed to ensure that the Rehabilitation and Resettlement
policy of DFCCIL give adequate rehabilitation compensation to Project affected Persons (both the
Title Holders and Non Title Holders) and others like Community Properties, etc. We are committed to
operate in an economically, socially, and environmentally sustainable manner.

Normally, all such activities are to be funded through Revenue Surplus. As the Corporation is under
construction and only incurring expenditure on Capital account, the scope of CSR spending is rather
limited. Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) activities in DFCCIL would cover the following areas:
Education, Health, Drinking, Environment (plantation), Solar Lighting System, Infrastructure for
Backward Areas, Community Development and Social Empowerment, Promotion of Sports and
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traditional forms of Art and Culture, Generation of employment opportunities and livelihood, and to
be a part of national/local initiatives to provide relief/ rehabilitation in times of natural disaster/
calamities. These activities are proposed to be as a part of the relief and rehabilitation efforts of the
Corporation towards mitigation of hardship of Project Affected People (PAPs).

Environment Protection and Conservation

As per Environment Impact Assessment Notification dated 14thSeptember, 2006, Environment
Impact Assessment is not mandatory for Railway projects. However, in view of the World Bank and
JICA safeguard policies EIA was conducted for APL-1 (Bhaupur-Khurja section) of Eastern Dedicated
Freight Corridor and Phase-1 (Rewari-Vadodara section) of Western Dedicated Freight Corridor. EIA
has also been conducted for APL-3 (Ludhiana-Khurja section), in progress for APL-2 (Mughalsarai-
Bhaupur section) of EDFC and Phase-2 (Vadodara-Mumbai & Dadri-Rewari sections) of WDFC. EIA is
proposed for Phase-3 (140km Kalol-Igbalgarh section) of WDFC. Alignment of DFC have been
meticulously selected & finalized to avoid or minimize intrusion & acquiring of sensitive
environmental features like forest land, water body etc. This is to ensure negligible/ minimum
damage to the flora & fauna. Wherever, it becomes unavoidable, statutory clearance from
Competent Authority will be obtained before undertaking construction work. Re-plantation will be
undertaken against trees felled within project-affected area and prior permission of the Competent
Authority will be obtained. So far, EIA studies have revealed negligible impact on the habitat of water
bodies, wildlife, flora, & fauna. Mitigation measures have been identified and recommended in the
Environmental Management Plan. Mitigation measures for anticipated air, water, soil pollution, dust
control during construction stage have been suggested. Wherever necessary, noise barrier has been
recommended. Regarding vibration mitigation, measures are proposed during design stage itself. It
may be noted that no standard on vibration is available in India. However, Japanese standard has
been referred for the purpose. In APL-1 (Bhaupur-Khurja) of EDFC, one ASI structure has been
identified near DFC alignment and permission has been sought from ASI authorities as per the Rule
for carrying out DFC construction work.
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Annexure ="D"

Declaration by Managing Director regarding compliance with the Code of Business and Ethics
Conduct by BoD members and Senior Management during financial Year 2010-2011.

[, Ram Kumar Gupta, Managing Director, Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India
Limited, do hereby declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and the Senior
Management Personnel have affirmed compliance of the Code of Business and Ethics Conduct
during 2010-2011

Sd/-
Place : New Delhi (Ram Kumar Gupta)
Date : 25.07.2011 Managing Director

ANNUAL REPORT 2010-11




”fﬁ'@ Dedicated Freight Corridor
T = Corporation of India Limited

s e TR

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2011

Schedule No. AS AT 31.03.2011 AS AT 31.03.2010
(Amountin¥)
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital 1 559,13,00,000 358,00,00,000
Share Application Money 108,00,00,000 201,13,00,000
Loan Fund
Unsecured Loan
Loan From MoR (EAP) 2 38,00,00,000 =
TOTAL 705,13,00,000 559,13,00,000
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed Assets 3
Gross Block 18,64,21,638 16,99,71,391
Less: Depreciation 8,40,60,975 4,62,75,082
Net Block 10,23,60,663 12,36,96,309
Capital Work in Progress 268,40,77,343 90,80,62,234
Advance For Capital Assets 4 184,01,60,067 149,58,46,933
462,65,98,073 252,76,05,476
Development Expenditure(Pending Capitalisation) 5 92,44,33,108 68,75,50,965
Current Assets, Loans and Advances 6
Sundry Debtors 4,78,00,102 1,52,34,847
Cash and Bank balances 231,88,83,623 244,94,29,528
Other Current Assets 26,94,88,094 15,82,69,769
Loans and Advances 8,74,68,933 6,84,14,845
272,36,40,752 269,13,48,989
Less: Current Liabilities and Provisions 7
Current Liabilities 119,17,32,581 28,86,60,026
Provisions 3,16,39,352 2,65,45,404
122,33,71,933 31,52,05,430
Net Current Assets 150,02,68,819 237,61,43,559
TOTAL 705,13,00,000 559,13,00,000
Significant Accounting Policies 8
Notes to the Accounts 9

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet

Forand on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Ashok Chopra (R.K.Gupta) (R.K.Sinha)
Partner Managing Director Director Finance
M.No.017199

For Jain Chopra & Company
Chartered Accountants

FRN 002198N

Place: New Delhi Sd/-

Date: 05 July 2011 (Meenu Kapoor)
Company Secretary
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Schedules forming part of Accounts

AS AT AS AT
31.03.2011 31.03.2010
(Amountin¥)

SCHEDULE 1
SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized capital

4,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs 1000/- each 4000,00,00,000 4000,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
5591300 (Previous year 3580000)
Equity shares of Rs 1000/- each fully paid up 559,13,00,000 358,00,00,000
TOTAL 559,13,00,000 358,00,00,000
AS AT AS AT
31.03.2011 31.03.2010
(Amountin?)
SCHEDULE 2

Unsecured Loan Loan From MoR For EAP / JICA Projects

(Loan from Ministry of Railway for External Aided Project.
Interest @ 7% payable after the moratorium period of ten years.)
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Schedules forming part of Accounts

AS AT AS AT
31.03.2011 31.03.2010
(Amountin?)

Schedule 4 : Advance For Capital Assets
Unsecured Considered Good

Advance to Railway 3,72,50,520 -
Advance For Construction of Officer's Flat 4,56,00,000 -

Mobilisation Advance

Secured Considered Good 382,655,849 103,903,599
“(Secured against hypothecation of Plant & Machinery in
favour of DFCCIL)"

Unsecured Considered Good 1,374,653,698 1,391,943,334

1,840,160,067 1,495,846,933
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Schedules forming part of Accounts

SCHEDULE 5 : DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE (Pending Capitalisation)

For theyear
ended 31.03.2011
(Amountin¥)

For the year
ended 31.03.2010

Opening balance

68,75,50,965

35,71,79,792

DFS@
-

»e FER SR

Advertisement Expenses 15,98,573 13,08,138
Establishment (Sch.-5B) 16,77,54,194 17,56,03,404
Gratuity (301,540) 4,55,854
Staff Welfare 55,11,416 56,93,692
Communication Expenses 70,01,421 70,73,020
Printing & Stationary 80,38,231 86,97,313
Misc. Expenses 7,84,466 5,36,373
Books & Periodicals 25,37,431 24,70,176
Legal & Professional Charges 1,39,30,715 1,05,61,407
Director Sitting Fees 2,40,000 =
Consultancy Fees to Consultants 47,69,695 13,86,139
Placement Consultancy Charges 1,04,61,210 79,22,629
Electricity Expenses 41,76,001 45,13,336
Power & Fuel 3,44,251 2,56,908
Housekeeping Expenses 77,91,562 61,85,675
Auditor's Remuneration
- Statutory Audit Fees 4,41,200 4,41,200
- Statutory Audit Fees (Previous year) - 1,65,450
- Certification fees - -
Meeting & Conference 4,09,179 6,42,834
Rates & Taxes 20,23,934 10,03,755
Rent 7,33,30,631 9,68,85,199
Tours, Travels and Conveyance 4,69,63,553 3,74,42,941
Repair & Maintenance-others 26,68,367 22,02,805
Annual Subscription Fees-IT Consultancy & Software 20,83,785 22,91,537
Office Expenses 6,65,390 541,813
Hospitality Expenses 8,11,553 2,14,112
Office Security Expenses 29,62,037 31,63,147
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 55,716 67,798
Interest on Service Tax 1,78,118 =
Foreign Currency Fluctuation 97,375 =
Interest Payable to MoR on EAP Loan 30,60,822 =
Prior Period Adjustment (Sch-5C) 7,12,048
Depreciation 3,83,46,544 3,02,95,001
Lease Hold Improvement Written Off - 2,82,54,044
TOTAL 109,69,98,843 79,34,55,492
Less:
Liquidated Damage (LDA) 1,66,02,302 3,40,806
Interest on Mobilization Advance(Accrued) (TDS Rs. 86,70,299) 8,73,76,657 5,07,17,224
Other Income During Construction Period (Sch 5A) 6,85,86,775 5,48,46,497
NET EXPENDITURE TRANSFERRED TO DEVELOPMENT ACCOUNT 92,44,33,108 68,75,50,965
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Schedules forming part of Accounts

SCHEDULE 5A : Schedule of Other Income During Construction Period

For theyear For the year
ended 31.03.2011 ended 31.03.2010
(Amountin¥)

Gross Receipts

Rent Recovery on Sub Lease 3,95,29,116 3,03,39,048
Facility management charges recovery on Sub Lease & Other:
Placement Consulting Fee 9,09,751 12,08,180
Housekeeping 15,01,608 12,71,100
Office Security Exp. 35,08,402 19,58,865
Electricity Exp. Office 43,86,612 32,45,931
Office Repair & Maintenance 246,741 3,66,128
Repair & Maintenance - A.C. 11,10,575 3,53,936
Pantry 72,059 32,211
Annual Maintenance Charges 2,783,781 2,85,302
Repair & Maintenance 3,79,966 =
Deposit Work Receipt 12,09,664 -
Capital expenditure Recovery on Sub Lease = 1,28,52,906
Composite Rent & Facility Management Charges Received 2,25,22,500 -
Interest on FDR (TDS 86,00,294 ) 8,57,57,315 7,61,89,544
Sale of Tender 5,55,700 3,12,000
Other Income 4,627 48,866
foreign Currency Fluctuation - 51,952
Prior Period Adjustment = 13,92,925
Depreciation Written Back = 3,157
16,19,73,417 12,99,12,050
Expenditure Incurred
Rent 4,88,14,066 3,03,39,048
Facility Management Charges:
Placement Consulting Charges 8,16,473 10,73,938
Housekeeping 16,52,723 11,31,821
Office Security Exp. 36,56,030 17,41,213
Electricity Exp. Office 43,29,859 28,85,272
Office Repair & Maintenance 2,19,325 3,25,447
Repair & Maintenance - A.C. 9,87,712 3,29,569
Pantry 64,052 28,632
Annual Maintenance Charges 2,47,806 2,53,602
Repair & Maintenance 3,37,916 -
Deposit Work 10,77,205 -
Internet Exp. 91,636 =
Income Tax
Income Tax Provision 3,13,26,357 2,59,30,869
Earlieryear (234,518) (398,663)
Capital expenditure Recovery on Sub Lease - 1,14,24,805
9,33,86,642 7.50,65,553
Net Income transferred to Development A/c 6,85,86,775 5,48,46,497
ANNUAL REPORT 2010-1 1
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Schedules forming part of Accounts

SCHEDULE 5B

For theyear
ended 31.03.2011

For the year
ended 31.03.2010

(Amountin¥)

ESTABLISHMENT EXPENSES

Salary

Salary Arrear A/C

TA/DA - Allowance
TADK-Allowance

Salary Arrear 2 Nd PC. (IDA)
Salary Arrear (CDA To IDA)
Salary Arrear (IDA To CDA)
Tax On Perquisites

Foreign Service Contribution
Furnishing Allowances
House Rent Allowance
Leave Encashment

EPF Employer Contribution
Administrative Charges On EPF
Transfer Grant

Transport Allowance

Consolidated Travelling Allowances

Composite Transf.Grant
Honorarium
Sumptuary Allowance
Hostel Allowance

Leave Travel Concession
Computer Training Fee
Medical Indoor
Medical Outdoor
Tution Fee

License Fee

Lease Rent

Professional Updation Allowances

Club Membership Fees Staff
Special Professional Allowances
Canteen Allowances

Charge Allowances

NPS Contribution

Joining Time Encashment
Electricity -Staff

Repair & Maint.-Lease

TOTAL

ANNUAL REPORT 2010-11

9,16,09,728 7,13,36,913
6,05,004 12,28,816
53,95,205 37,70,521
36,07,101 34,32,000
- 28,90,191
1,23,475 1,02,00,000
11,659 -
36,18,129 39,12,337
96,68,505 3,28,13,262
62,56,156 55,40,009
12,26,610 10,58,668
8,31,921 7,14,358
56,122 -
5,344
27,180 -
18,92,575 24,93,174
26,91,667 28,07,450
6,10,029 6,58,681
4,440 -
49,62,794 32,10,948
6,000 72,000
10,803 10,617
71,090 3,09,317
13,09,901 15,80,508
70,27,019 59,54,690
18,08,727 21,68,458
61,15,048 58,49,516
1,38,74,711 1,25,19,322
12,95,857 -
8,74,837 -
2,76,269 -
65,874 -
98,405 -
72,214 -
26,383 -
16,14,287 4,56,400
3,125 6,15,248
16,77,54,194 17,56,03,404
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Schedules forming part of Accounts

SCHEDULE 5C

Prior Period Adjustment

Particulars 2010-11 2009-10
(Amountin?) (Amountin?)

Dr. | Cr. Dr. | Cr.
Advertisement Expenses = = = 1,363,284
Air & Rail Travels 71,489 - - -
Annual Maintenance Charges 160,905 - - -
Communication Expenses = = 58,614 68,741
Consultancy Fee - 82,293 - 43,000
Electricity Expenses 163,248 - 453,594 -
Establishment = = 364,815 675,177
F.B.T.A.Y.(2008-09) - - 25,355 -
Hospitality Expenses - - 44,390 -
Housekeeping Expenses = = 29,889 =
L.DA. = = = 650,528
Legal & Professional Charges - - 325,275 35,275
Other Expenses 47,635 - 76,228 -
Office Security - 35,755 - 70,231
Placement Consultancy Charges - - 59,564 -
Printing & Stationery = = 111,404 55,709
Professional Charges - 103,281 -
Repair & Maintenance- other 197,695 - - -
Rent 133,187 = =
Tours, Travels and Conveyance - 30,082 231,383 216,865
Vehicle Hiring Charges 127,253 = = =
Misc Prior Period Adjustments 62,962 915 66,865 61,491
Total 9,64,374 2,52,326 18,47,376 32,40,301
Prior Period Adjustment 2010-11 712,048
Prior Period Adjustment 2009-10 (1,392,925)

ANNUAL REPORT 2010-11




Dedicated Freight Corridor
Corporation of India Limited

DFS@
-

»e FER SR

Schedules forming part of Accounts

AS AT AS AT
31.03.2011 31.03.2010
(Amountin?)
SCHEDULE 6
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
CURRENT ASSETS
Sundry Debtors (Unsecured Considered Good)
a.Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months 2,23,13,839 1,24,78,829
b. Other Debts * 2,54,86,263 27,56,018
*(Debts represent Rent etc. receivable on account of Subleases)
4,78,00,102 1,52,34,847

Cash and Bank balances-
Balances with Scheduled banks
In Current Accounts 7,16,22,684 523,12,078
In Deposits A/c 224,72,60,939 239,71,17,450
TOTAL 231,88,83,623 244,94,29,528
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Interest Accrued/Receivable on

Term Deposits 1,77,81,051 1,79,32,302

Others (Mobilisation Advance) 5,16,16,315 4,53,46,543
Expenditure on Land Acquisition-Recoverable from MOR 20,00,90,728 9,49,90,924
TOTAL 26,94,88,094 15,82,69,769
LOANS AND ADVANCES
Advances recoverable in cash orin kind or for value to be received
Unsecured and Considered Good
Security Deposits 3,71,66,807 3,64,14,712
Advance For PC Arrear Railway 61,580 1,69,142
Advance Tax & TDS 3,40,29,467 2,62,90,402
Income Tax Refund 33,83,933 28,09,365
Input Service Tax Credit 95,86,040 18,53,634
Others 32,11,106 8,77,590
Advance To Director's For Expenses 30,000 =
(Maximum Dr. Balance During The Year Rs 30000/-)
TOTAL 8,74,68,933 6,84,14,845
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Schedules forming part of Accounts

AS AT AS AT
31.03.2011 31.03.2010
(Amountin?)

SCHEDULE 7
CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry Creditors

Micro & Small - -

Others 37,25,30,131 22,33,93,442
Other Deposit 86,50,989 41,61,268
Security Deposits Received from Supplier & Service Providers 6,12,96,008 3,52,06,177
Advance from Customer 6,47,769 -
Advance for Land (Pending for Transfer to SLAO A/c) 67,36,50,157 -
Other Liabilities 7,18,96,705 2,58,99,139
Interest Accrued But Not Due on Loan from MoR 30,60,822 -
TOTAL 119,17,32,581 28,86,60,026
PROVISIONS
Provision for Income Tax 3,13,26,357 2,59,30,869
Provision for Gratuity 3,12,995 6,14,535
TOTAL 3,16,39,352 2,65,45,404
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Schedule 8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost
convention in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles generally
accepted in India and complying with the mandatory Accounting Standards issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India , as applicable under section 211(3C)of the
Companies Act, 1956.

2. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statement and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for
the years presented. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any variation in the
estimates and actual are adjusted in current and future accounting periods.

3. Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised based on the nature of activity when consideration can be reasonably
measured and there exists reasonable certainty of its recovery.
(i) Intereston Bank Deposits is booked on a time proportion basis
(i) Otheritemsofincome are accounted for as and when the right to receive is established.
(iii) Service chargesincome is recognized as per the terms of the contracts.

4. Fixed Assets & Amortization

a) Fixed assets are stated at historical cost and all directly attributable expenses relating to
the acquisition of the assets are capitalized along with respective assets.

b) All development cost being incurred on construction and acquisition of Assets forming
part of the railway infrastructure will be capitalized by distributing the same over costs
of completed Assets.

c) Depreciation on additions/deletions to Fixed Assets is provided on pro-rata basis
from/to the date of addition/deletions.

d) Depreciation is provided on the written down value method at the rates specified in
Schedule X1V to The Companies Act, 1956 except the following in which depreciation is
provided on pro-rata basis on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
theassets determined:

Laptop 30.00%

Mobile 90.00%
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e) Intangible Assets and Amortization

i) Computer Antivirus Software is amortized over its useful life i.e. one year on pro-rata
basis.

ii) Other Computer software is amortized over the period of three years on pro-rata
basis.

f) Leasehold Premises Improvement

Leasehold Premises improvements are amortized over the residual period of lease from the
month in which such leasehold improvements are put to use.

5. Employees' Benefits
a) Shortterm employee benefits
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as short- term compensated
absences, etc. are recognized in the period which the employee renders the related service.
b) Longterm employee benefits
(i) The provision/liabilities towards Gratuity are made on the basis of actuarial valuation
atthe end of the year and charged to the development Account.
(i) Provision/liabilities towards Foreign Service Contribution are made in terms of
Government

Rules & Regulation for employees on deputation and charged to development Account.

6. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are
capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as
expenses in the period in which these are incurred.

7. Accounting for Lease

The Company's significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases for
premises (residential and office). The leasing arrangements which are not cancellable ranges
between 11 months to three years generally are usually renewable by mutual consent on
agreed terms. The aggregate lease rentals payable are charged as rent for the year.

8. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial
degree of estimation, if

(@) The Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event.
(b) Aprobable outflow of resources is expected to settle the obligation; and
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(c) Theamount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.
Contingent liability is disclosed in case of
(a) apresentobligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
(b) apresentobligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible;
(c) a possible obligation arising from past events where the probability of outflow of
resources is not remote.
Contingent assets are not recognised, Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
arereviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

9. Taxation
Income taxes are computed using the tax effect accounting method, where taxes are accrued
in the same period the related revenue & expenses arise. A provision is made for income tax
annually based on the tax liability computed,after considering tax allowances & exemptions
as per applicable law.

10. Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing on the
date of transactions. All Monetary items outstanding at the end of the year are translated at
the rates prevailing at the end of the year.
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Schedule 9

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. Contingent Liabilities

The Company is contesting no. of legal cases on behalf of MoR in matters involving
compensation in connection with acquisition of land in Courts of Law and in Arbitration. The
Company does not anticipate any liability on this account. Further some parties have referred
to Arbitration in case of contracts with them. The amount of claims underlying these
contracts is ¥ 6,24,60,607. Pending finalization of proceedings, which are at a preliminary
stage, no provisions have been made in this behalf.

2. Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for¥ 1557.30 crores (Previous Year % 1588.84 crores).

3. The Company is in construction stage for work relating to Eastern Section and Western
Section for Dedicated Freight Corridor Project. Accordingly, no separate Profit & Loss
Account is being drawn. Instead a Development Account is drawn showing the required
information as required by Part Il of Schedule VI in respect of Profit & Loss Account.

4. On the basis of information available there are no dues towards Micro, Small and Medium
enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small & Medium enterprises Development Act
2006" to whom the company owes dues.

5. In the opinion of the Board, value of Current Assets, loans & advances if realized in the normal
course of the business, shall not be less than the value stated in the accounts.

6. Provision for Income tax has been made in respect of Income from Interest on Fixed Deposits
and Service Charges recovered. However no provision has been made on Interest on
Mobilization Advance given to Contractor and on the Liquidated damage (LDA) recovered as
the same has been considered as Capital Receipt based on opinion obtained from
Consultants. No adjustment has been made for taxes on income as per AS 22, as the
Company isin construction stage.

7. Employee Benefits.

Provision for gratuity liability for the year has been made as per Actuarial Valuation as on 31-
03-2011.
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Gratuity Benefit is payable to employees on separation from the corporation. The amount of
gratuity payable is based on past service and salary at the time of separation as per Payment
of Gratuity act, 1972. There is a vesting period of 5 years on the benefit.

A reconciliation of opening & closing Balances of the present value of the retirement benefit
(Gratuity) obligation and the effects during the period attributable to each are the following:

Particulars Amount in¥
Opening Balance as on 01/04/2010 6,14,535
Interest Cost 46,090
Current service cost 1,38,177
Benefit paid --

Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on obligation (4,85,807)
Closing Balance as on 31/03/2011 3,12,995

Expenses Recognized:

Particulars Amountin?
Interest Cost 46,090
Current service cost 1,38,177
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on obligation (4,85,807)

Actuarial Assumptions:

Method Of Valuation : Project Unit Credit Method

Discount Rate : 7.50%

Salary Escalation Rate: 3%

Mortality rate LIC (1994-96) published table of Mortality rates
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8. Foreign Service Contribution (FSC)
Foreign Service Contribution payable for leave salary and pension in respect of deputationist
(Employees who have joined the corporation on deputation for a fix period from Indian
Railways) for the year 2010-11 in terms of Government rules and regulation is estimated and
is charged to Development account on accrual basis.

9. The Company has taken premises for its corporate office on operating lease effective from
15th February 2008. The lease is not non-cancelable during the current term of lease. Further
company has also sub-lease part of the premises which is not non-cancelable during the
current term of lease.

Lease payments recognised in the statement of Development Account for the period
2010-11is312,21,44,697 (PreviousyearX 12,72,24,247)

Sub lease receivables recognised in the statement of Development Account for the period
2010-11is% 3,95,29,116 (Previous year¥ 3,03,14,048)

10. The Company has obtained security deposits amounting to ¥ 1, 99, 79,779 (Previous Year
X 2,01, 09,779) from Contractors and Sub Tenants in the shape of Fixed Deposit Receipts.
Accordingly the same has not been shown as part of assets or liabilities.

11.  Security Deposits shown under Loans & Advances include ¥ 2,67,49,800 (Previous Year
% 2,67,49,800) given to DMRC by way of Fixed Deposit under their lien. Interest Accrued
thereon amounting to % 25,96,972 (Previous Year % 46,65,282) is included in Interest on Fixed
Deposits in Development Account.

12.  The corporation has paid tax on behalf of employees on Lease rents for accommodation,
Medical allowances, Electricity allowances and Furnishing allowances treating these as non-
monetary perks. In view of the observation on this practice being followed in many PSU,
made by CAG relating to violation of Section 200 of the Companies Act 1956, and other
regulatory approvals, the corporation is in the process of obtaining legal opinion in the
matter.
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a) KeyManagement Personnel

Mr V. K. Kaul

Mr S. K. Malik

Mr. B. N. Rajasekhar

Mr. A. K. Dutta

Mr. R. K. Sinha

Mr. P. N. Shukla

Mr. B. B. Saran

Mr. Vivek Sahai

Mr. S. S. Khurana
Mr. R. N. Bartarya
Mr. M. Damodaran
Mr. Gajendra Haldea
Mr. D. T. Joseph

Mr. Bhaskar Gupta

Related Party Disclosures:
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Managing Director (Whole Time Director) up to
06.10.2010

Managing Director (Looking after) from 13-09-2010 to
30-11-2010.

Managing Director (Looking After) 1-12-2010 to
14-03-2011

Managing Director (Looking After) 22-03-2011 to
09-05-2011. Whole Time Director (INFRA)
w.e.f 01-04-2010

Whole Time Director (Finance)

Whole Time Director (OPR & BD)

Whole Time Director (PP) up to 31.01.2011

Part Time Chairman from 02-06-2010

Part Time Chairman up to 02-06-2010

Part Time Director (Official)

Part Time Director w.e.f. 14.05.2010

Part Time Director (Official)

Part Time Director (Non Official) w.e.f. 14.05.2010

Part Time Director (Non Official) w.e.f. 23.11.2010

Note: MrR.K.Gupta hasbeen appointed as Managing Director w.e.f 10.05.2011.

a) Enterprisesinwhich directors interest exist: NIL
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c) Disclosure of transactions with related parties:-

Particulars Transactions
Year ended Year ended
31/03/2011 31/03/2011

%

Remuneration to Refer point 14

key Personnel
(a) above

14. Managerial Remuneration

Salary & allowances(Including
PC & IDA Arrear)

Value of Perks

15. Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Subscription fees for IT
Tour & Travel expenses

Project Consultancy Services

16. Land/Land Acquisition

3

Refer point 14

Year ended

31/03/2011
3

64,76,254

24,55,942

Year en ded

31/03/2011
3

18,02,486
2,19,938

40,62,956

Outstanding Amount

As at As at

31/03/2011 31/03/2011
3 3

NIL NIL

Year ended

31/03/2010
3

97,19,693

12,57,115

Year ended

31/03/2010
3

18,72,000
18,01,687

14,93,708

(@) As per Directions of Ministry of Railways (MOR), the Company is acquiring Land on
behalf of MOR in association with Competent Authority nominated by MOR. The
Company has incurred expenses amounting * 20.00 crore (Previous Year ".9.50 crores) in
connection with acquisition of Land up to 31.03.2011. The same has been shown as

recoverable from MOR subject to their confirmation.

(b) Further, Bank accounts have been opened and operated jointly by the Competent
Authority & a nominee of the Company. Such Bank Accounts do not form part of the

Company's accounts.
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(c) Bank balances include fixed deposit with banks amounting to ¥ 68.69 crores held on
behalf of State Land Acquisition Officer (SLAO) and ¥ 0.11 crores in current account in
SLAO Bank accounts.
(d) Acapof0.5% of compensation payment has to be observed for the expenditure on land
acquisition. The expenditure on land facilitation for financial year 2009-10 and 2010-11
is 20.00 crores against land compensation disbursement in two years of approximately
% 1434 crore. This comes to 1.39%, which is more than the cap defined by the MoR for
expenses on land acquisition vide their letter dated 26-07-2010. The same is subject to
the confirmation by MoR. The company has made a request to the Ministry of Railways
to raise the said limit to 1.50%. Pending confirmation of the balance and raising of the
limit on expenditure, the said sum has been shown as recoverable from MoR.

17. The Company has sent letters to obtain confirmation from respective parties to which few
parties have responded. The rest of personal balances are subject to their respective
Confirmation.

18. The company has made a provision of interest at the rate of 7% on the loan received from
MOR for External Aided Projects (EAP). The provision of interest on this loan has been
provided on the basis of a “Supplementary note for the Cabinet” dated 16.09.2009 for loan to
Ministry of Railway as an externally aided component of Gross Budgetary Support by
Ministry of Finance. As per this letter interest will be paid to the Ministry of Finance @ 7%
over the period of the loan, after the moratorium period of ten years.

19. An amount of ¥ 156.05 crores (Previous Year ¥ 239.71 crores) out of share capital/ share
application money received remained unutilized, and kept in Term deposits with Scheduled
Banks as on 31st March 2011.

20. Previous Year figures have been regrouped/ recast wherever considered necessary.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Ashok Chopra (R. K. Gupta) (R. K. Sinha)
Partner Managing Director Director Finance
M. No. 017199
ForJain Chopra & Company
Chartered Accountants Sd/-
FRN 002198N (Meenu Kapoor)

Company Secretary

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 5, 2011
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BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND A COMPANY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

SCHEDULE VI PART IV
COMPANIES ACT, 1956

1. Registration Details

Registration No. 1,55,068 State code 55
Balance Sheet Date 31.03.11

1L Capital Raised during the year (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
PublicIssue NIL Rights Issue NIL
Bonus Issue NIL Private Placement 20,11,300

1l Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Total Liabilities 82,74,672 Total Assets 82,74,672
Sources of Funds

Paid-up Capital(Including Share Application Money) 66,71,300 Reserves & Surplus NIL
Secured Loans NIL Unsecured Loans 380000
Net Deferred Tax Liability NIL

Application of Funds

Net Fixed Assets 55,51,031 Investments NIL
Net Current Assets 15,00,269 Misc. Expenditure NIL
Accumulated Losses NIL
V. Performance of company (Amountin Rs. Thousands)
Turnover - Total expenditure -
Profit/(Loss) Before tax - Profit/(Loss) After tax -
Earning per ShareinRs. = Dividend Rate % =
V. Generic Names of Three Principal Products/ Services of Company
(as per monetary terms)
Item Code No. (ITC Code) 98.09
Product Description Turnkey construction
Item Code No. (ITC Code) NIL
Product Description NIL
Item Code No. (ITC Code) NIL
Product Description NIL

m ANNUAL REPORT 2010-11




Dedicated Freight Corridor
Corporation of India Limited

DFS@
-

»e FER SR

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011

S.No. Particulars 2010-11 2009-10
(Amountin?) (Amountin?)
1. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net profit before taxation, and extraordinary items =
Adjustments for changes in Working Capital:
Increase in other receivables (162,837,668) 54,68,40,326
Decrease in current liabilities 903,072,555 11,78,50,074
Decrease in Provision 5,093,948 14,71,158
(Decrease) in Deferred Tax liability - -
Cash Generated from Operations - -
Income Taxes paid/Received (Net of TDS) 34,029,467 2,62,90,402
Cash flow from Operations (A) - 779,358,302 - 692,451,960
2 Cash from Investment Activities :-
Purchase of Fixed assets /Development A/C (2,369,904,207) (2,329,190,417)
Interestincome (Revenue) - -
Net Cash generated from / (used in)
Investing activities (B) (2,369,904,207) (2,369,904,207)  (2,329,190,417) (2,329,190,417)
3 Cash flow from Financing Activities :-
Proceeds from issuance of Share capital 2,011,300,000 99,77,00,000
Proceeds from Share Application Money (931,300,000) 201,13,00,000
Proceeds from long term borrowings 380,000,000 -
Net Cash generated from / (used in)
Financing activities 1,460,000,000  146,00,00,000 300,90,00,000  300,90,00,000
Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash &
cash equivalent (A+B+C) -130,545,905 137,22,61,543
Cash & Cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 244,94,29,528 107,71,67,985
Cash & Cash equivalent at the closing of the year 231,88,83,623 244,94,29,528
Cash and Cash equivalents comprise 231,88,83,623 244,94,29,528
Cash and Chequesin Hand
Balance with Scheduled Banks
On Current Account 7,16,22,684 5,23,12,078
On term Deposit Account 224,72,60,939 239,71,17,450
Notes:
1 The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method setout in AS-3 issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.
2. This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
Forand on behalf of Board of Directors
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Ashok Chopra (R.K. Gupta) (R.K.Sinha)
Partner Managing Director Director Finance
M.No. 017199

For Jain Chopra & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN 002198N

Place: New Delhi
Date:July 5,2011

ANNUAL REPORT 2010-11

Sd/-
(Meenu Kapoor)

Company Secretary




Dedicated Freight Corridor
Corporation of India Limited

Jain Chopra & Company

Chartered Accountants
105, Jyoti Bhawan, Commercial Complex,
Mukherjee Nagar, Delhi -110009
Phone: 27652776, 27652091 Fax: 011-27650155
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Auditors’ Report
To the Members,
Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Limited

1. We have audited the attached Balance sheet of DEDICATED FREIGHT CORRIDOR
CORPORATION OF INDIA LTD as at 31" March, 2011, and the Development Expenditure
(Pending Capitalization), prepared in lieu of the Profit and Loss Account, and the Cash Flow
Statement for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto, which we have signed under
reference to this report. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements base
on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards generally accepted in India.
Those Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. As required by the COMPANIES (AUDITOR'S GEPORT) Order, 2003, (The ORDER) issued by the
CENTRAL GOVERNMENT IN TERMS OF Section 227 (4A) of the Companies Act, 1956 and on
the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate, we enclose in the Annexure a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 of the said Order.

4. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 above, attention is
drawn as under to:

a) Note No. 12 regarding legal opinion being sought by the Corporation in the matter of
applicability of the provisions of section 200 of the Companies Act, 1956 to the tax free
allowances given to the employees of the Corporation;

b) Note No. 6 regarding non provision of Income Tax on Interest on mobilization advances
and liquidated damages recovered from contractors;

c¢) Note No. 11 regarding recognition of an income of Rs. 25,96,972 (cumulative figure
upto 31st March 2011 of Rs. 72,62,254/-) being interest on security deposit given as per
lease agreement with Delhi Metro Railways Corporation Limited (DMRC) by way of a
fixed deposit. The terms of lease however provides that an interest free deposit will be
provided as security deposit. In absence of a written confirmation from DMRC we are
unable to comment on the recognition of the said income. Likewise no income has been
recognized in respect of such deposits obtained from the sub tenants.

d) Note No. 16(a) regarding claim of a sum of Rs.20.00 crores from Ministry of Railways
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(MOR) towards expenses incurred by the company till 31st March 2011 and shown
recoverable from MOR, is subject to the approval and confirmation by MOR.

Subject to the foregoing we further report that:

a)

b)

Q)

e)

We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
company so far as appears from our examination of those books.

The Company's Balance Sheet, Development Expenditure (Pending Capitalisation)
prepared in lieu of Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
reportisin agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the Balance Sheet Development Expenditure (Pending Capitalisation)
prepared in Lieu of Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
report comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub section ( 3C) of Section
211 of the companies Act, 1956.

In pursuance to the notification No. GSR 829(E) dated 17.7.2003, issued by the
Department of Company Affairs; clauses (g) of sub-section (1) of Section 274 of the
companies Act, 1956 pertaining to disqualification of Directors is not applicable to a
Government Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the said accounts read together with the principal accounting policies and notes forming
part of the accounts appearing under Schedules 8 and 9 and subject to the consequential
effect of, if any, on account of our observations in paragraph 4 above give the information
required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March
2011;

In the case of the Development Expenditure (Pending Capitalisation) prepared in lieu of
Profit and Loss Account, of the Net Expenditure of the Company for the year ended on
that date; and

In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the period indeed on that
date.

Sd/-
Ashok Chopra
Partner

Place : New Delhi

Dated : July 5, 2011

Membership No. 17199
For Jain Chopra &Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN 02198N
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Annexure to the Auditors' Report
(Referred to in Paragraph 3 of our report of even date)

1. a) The Company has generally maintained proper records to show the full particulars
including quantitative details of fixed assets. However details of exact locations are not
availablein all cases.

b) As explained to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the Management
during the year. We are informed that no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. The discrepancies noticed have been properly dealt with in the books of
account.

c¢) Thecompany has not disposed off substantial part of its fixed assets during the year.

2. As informed to us, not loan has been granted or take, secured or unsecured, to/from
Companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of
the Companies Act, 1956.

3. As per information and explanations given the company has purchased and obtained services
for which comparative quotations have not been obtained. We are unable to comment on the
same and the internal controls exercised in the matter. Subject to the same, in our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the internal control procedures
are generally adequate and commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its
business for the purchase of inventories and fixed assets and for the sale of goods. During the
course of our audit, we have not noticed any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses
ininternal controls.

4. a) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no contracts or
arrangements referred to in section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 that need to be
entered into the register maintained under the said section.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
entered into any transaction in pursuance of contracts or arrangements required to be
entered in the registers maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

5. During the year, the company has not accepted any deposit from the public.

6. In our opinion, the internal audit system is not commensurate with the size of the Company
and nature of its business and there is scope forimprovement.

7. a) The Companyis generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employee's state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, wealth tax, custom duty, excise duty and cess except that the company had delayed
the payment of service tax on import of services. According to the information and
explanations given to us, there are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
income-tax, wealth tax, sales tax, customs duty, excise duty and cess.
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16.

17.
18.
19.
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The Company does not have accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and has not
incurred cash losses during the year and in the immediately preceding year, the company
being in development stage.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
has no dues towards any financial institution or bank.

Based on our examination and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of
shares, debentures and other securities except grant of mobilization advances against
hypothecation of plant and machinery acquired by the contractors.

The Company is not a chit fund, nidhi, mutual benefit fund or a society.

The Company is not dealing or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other
investments.

On the basis of the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any
guarantees.

On the basis of the information and explanations given to us, the Company has obtained
term loan from Ministry of Railways and the same have been used for the purpose for which it
has been raised.

In our opinion and on the basis of the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has raised long term funds which have been used for long term purposes.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties
and companies covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Act.

The Company has notissued any debentures during the year.
The Company has not raised any money by publicissues during year.

We are informed that there has been no fraud committed by or on the company during the
year.

Sd/-

Ashok Chopra

Partner

Membership No. 17199
For Jain Chopra &Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN 02198N

Place: New Delhi
Dated:July5,2011
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Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 619(4) of the
companies Act, 1956 on the accounts of Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India
limited for the year ended 31st March 2011.

The preparation of financial statements of Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Limited
for the year ended 31st March 2011 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed
under the Companies Act, 1956 is the responsibility of the management of the company. The
statutory auditors appointed by the Comptroller and auditor General of India under section 619(2)
of the companies Act 1956 are responsible for expressing opinion on these financial statement under
section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956 based on the independent audit in accordance with the
auditing and assurance standards prescribed by their professional body, the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated
05.07.2011.

l, on the behalf of the Comptroller and auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary
audit under section 619(3) (b) of the companies Act, 1956 of the financial statements of Dedicated
Freight Corridor Corporation of India Limited for the year ended 2011. This supplementary audit has
been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is
limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective
examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would give rise to any
comment upon or supplement to Statutory auditors' report under section 619(4) of the Companies
Act, 1956.

For and on the behalf of the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India

Sd/-
(John K. Sellate)
Pr. Director of Commercial audit &
Ex-Officeo Member, Audit Board-IV.
Place: New Delhi
Dated: 18.08.2011
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feaeft: 4l 3R, . T B e 10, 05. 2011 W e M MY fhar T e |
Q) 35 R el F1fga 2 | I
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) R UETBRI @ W1 HRAGER] BT UdHeIhRol i—

faaRor
31. 03. 2011
CARISRCE]
(¥ug)
R (F) R SfeaiRad T W 14 <9
T Yeg ARBIRT
Bl gRaferI

14, gaeTht Pl aRefRT

9T Td el (I SHTRNT
T4 1S S T 9B wfea)

SRR

15. fcell a1 o 2 @ T /I

g e & fog e Yo
SR g I
IR TR HaTy

16. A /9 s

31. 03. 2010
BT FEE 9

(ou)

T . 14 <

31. 03. 2011
B T qY

(o)
64,76,254

24,55,942

31. 03. 2011
BT FATT I

(o)
18,02,486
2,19,938

40,62,956

CEaR I

31. 03. 2011 31. 03. 2010
B G 9§ BT GATT I

(o) (o)
EARE] BO el

31. 03. 2010
B T qY

(o)
97,19,693

12,57,115

31. 03. 2010
BT FATT I

(o)
18,72,000
18,01,687

14,93,708

(@) XA HATE & M B STHR BUHI Xl AT DI SR | Vel AT GRT A Her TDIN &
s 9 SIRATEIT TR R B HU A fAF 31032011 TF ¥ & ARTET B FY H 20,00
RIS & (Td T 9.50 PRI§ &) B NI T B & | 394 DI ¥l AAGHd DI YiRe | I oy 7

gl

(@) 39 sfaRe do @ @lel 3T U § iR 37 @il B T WiER AR S & Yo A
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e iR b | T
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T YT U H e (BT ST & | U §% @l U1 b Gl T A1 el el @ |

() Al ST H ATaS ST & WY H 68.69 BRI . DI RN 94 YA AT SEHRT (THTH)
P IR TAT 0.11 FRI B, Y A1 TAYATRN 6 Tl H 2Tl § W12 |

(&) ™ SEIEY W T & oy &fyfd & Yae @1 0.5 Wi & U Y oTls T8 & | fawi 9y
2009—10 Ud 2010—11 H [ &Y W ST 1434 IR . DI oIl § YA A W 20
RIS . BT T AT | I 1.39 TR Bl & Sl X AT & (a1 26.07.2010 B U §IRT A
AR R @ & forg aRIfid o 72 U W 31 & q9Id o Yot HATerd gt gfie o | Sl
& ST 1 Bl 1,50 TR T 9T @ folg Vel Ao & SR foram & | 91 &R &d R <
I B WM Yt Yot HATTT F Tt o aTell IR & 5 g TR |

17. B A Had vell | gfte 91 v & forg uF Hol € T 9 B Ul 9 Sek 91w gU & | IR 31y
BT IH1T 370 Ao gt @ 3l R aMeIRa 2 |

18, G 7 9181 FRIIAT URIISHT & ol Yol HATerd A UK 0T TR 7 Wf9Td <a7aT &% T MIaeT a¥R
& | 3% FVT IR TS S WTGET Bl el fad HaTerd gRT Adhe golc THeiE & STex! el 31a9d &
W H Xl FAe BT K0T B folU feid 16.09.2009 & "Dfae & folv Afterdics) e’ & MR W &
TS | 39 U & IR 10 99 31 fIcies iy & o B W I HAred @ 7 wfed o &) |

1T fe T e |

19. IR YOl /IR A9 (Y & T H U 156.05 TRIS . (70 Y 239.71 TS %.) DI IRT HT ITIRT
<TE! {33 T QT 31 AT, 2011 DI g R WA WU H AT dbi H S |

20. OB W & STHel B el SMaLD AN T © R ol T 2 |

fyeore Jed @l AR 9
g/~ /- 8/~
ﬁ ElLS] (o, . ) R @, f%—r;:_r)r
SIdl 9. 17199 A /

TWHARTA 00211987 g/

(1 =)
. Pl Wi
&1 : 05 TS, 2011
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s e TR

gl BT H1R 3R DYl &1 ATHTR PRI 35T

SN VI AT IV
B IR, 1956

1. Yol &R

USHTehROT R 1,55,068 I B8 55

LEREEEIINCS 31.03.11
2 T & SR T TS Yo (o SO i )

Tt e P T8l R fefa PIg el

a3 PIg Tal IZAE A 20,11,300
3, faferal & wueor sk fae o Rerfa (TRr TR Tul )

B JIATY 82,74,672 Tt gRwafeTar 82,74,672

foferat &

T Yot (A1 3rmae Al afea) 66,71,300 IRfENT 3R ey IS el

Ry T P15 Tal aryforfer e IS Tal

SRR B ST PIg T

fAera &1 SrgyrnT

g T uRwufe 55,51,031 faaer DI TE1

Y& A aRwafeat 15,00,269 fafe e DI TE1
4. B BT TR (IR BRSOt #)

Eg_vfﬁ?f?f - Bl I -

& qd o/ (@I) - B I M /7T -

T 3R 3olE Tut § - A -
5. DU B A YT IeUTS / BTl & WA

(Aifer 91t & SN

T BIE ¥, (375 < 4 BiS) 98.09

IS qUI T fAty

T BIS E. (318 O W Bre) PIE T

STE U PIg Tl

S PIS F. (3115 < Bl PIg el

SIS qUi IS Tal
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PFcc,

¥des be PSR FIORIE
311w sisan fabies =
31 #ATd, 2011 &) AHTA T @ ferv aacl gdrg faaeer
B faawor 31.03.2011 & 31.03.2010 B
(R o ) (RR3r o )
1. IRETeT IR ¥ Taal Ja1e 3 94 I
A 3R SRR 7S 1] Yort #
IRadH! & forg THRI:
317 uTe IR A gfg (16,28,37,668) 54,68,40,326
T T3 H BH 90,30,72,555 11,78,50,074
T & ) 509,39,48 14,71,158
STRIfAI X ST & HH - -
ReTer! o A THdl - -
G U /3T fSAT T (ST D g UkY) 34,029,467 2,62,90,402
TRaTe! | THe! YaTE (T) 77,93,58,302 69,24,51,960
2 gl friawr fafaftral & o Fad—
R uReufcral o @eis / e o (23,69,904,207) (23,29,190,417)
1ol 3 (WTo7¥a) = =
ol fraer wrfcfafel & ore e
/3 ) TS B (236,99,04,207) (236,99,04,207) (232,91,90,417) (232,91,90,417)
3. faci iRt ¥ < yare—
IRR Yol & R & 91 eeRify 201,13,00,000 99,77,00,000
IR SATAE ¥ TS GFRI (93,13,00,000) 201,13,00,000
efPTel SR @1 IR 38,00,00,000 =
faci wfafaferl & e Fadt /
o @t T8 bl 146,0,000,000 146,00,00,000  300,90,00,000 300,90,00,000
Ade 3R Abs
TG # gg e/ () -13,05,45,905 137,22,61,543
9 B TRY H Ape 3R Vb THPGE 244,94,29,528 107,71,67,985
4 &) I R Vs AR Ads T9He 231,88,83,623 244,94,29,528
Ade AR ABs THHEH Thg 3R T A WA 8 231,88,83,623 244,94,29,528
TR oD WA &
I Sai # 9y Iy
eIk 7,16,22,684 5,23,12,078
ST 224,72,60,939 239,71,17,450

e

1. ST TSI FaTE faav AR AIES THISce HeelH §RT o) ereid ara—3 # i smee fafdr & siawfa (o fvar a2 |

2. 39 TP YaTE fIaR0T 3 Seoid AN S RIS & fpar g |

g/—

(erela Ae)

TR

el 9. 17199

B L9 . 0021987

RI: 7§ faeedl
faTi®: 05 JTrs, 2011
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pf%
T =

s e TR

38ldes Be dHISK BIURIE
3w Stsan ferfies

Sl dIusT Us et
qcS TP
105, T 9o, DR Diced, J@6il TR, 5 faeeli—110009
BI: 27652776, 27652091 Had: 011—27650155
3-Ha jc_company@sify.com

aear wlae @1 Rulé

TEIBCS He HIISR BIYNI I 31T feIfics & wewdl oY Ieer:

T SeIdcs W DRISK BIUNT MM §ieAl flfics 31 A, 20113 Hole W U3 q SHa
Y g Sul Al Y T BIURTH & fAdr g o BT o TWIeoT o forar @ for R g9 g9
Ruie & e # avaer fov €| 31 i vl & Wee 3 Rrar) Suem @ Tees @ 2 | 3R
TR ST oivaT Tl & AR W 37 fawiid faaron & |eer # ¥ e e 2 |

T AT T T R W ARG Whd ol T AMa! B SUR B © | S AMd! A
TR © {5 T IT THETA AL W S b fo1Q o @ URIE Y iR S| ATSrT 1Y o 31
faci faaeon # 318 Fewyet Tod fdawr mive 7 8 ficiy faae @ akm ik swde &
T ¥ SfeaRad THIT 9 U T b TR W S AT oikaT INIe H fiel BT @ | oikaT g A
TYT SR gl iR FEe G by 7T AEayqyr e &l Jeaiee q w7 fawir fdawo
@1 IR BT Geuiar i i ai @ | & fovare & for SARY oram aden ¥ g9 I & forg e
IR ST 2 |

ST fob BT SRR, 1956 T ERT 227(4T) & STTERY H DS WRHR  GRT W] SUCRIT (ol
TRIETdH B RUIC) ST, 2003 # SN 8 3R &0 Uell Sidl & SR W oI & Sfud W € | &
ST e & 1 4 # fAffde aFal TR 16 f[avoT sijee & 9y Tl SR @ © |

SR IR 3 7 Ieatead el 4 &1 T3 SANI fCHor & sfatra, fRmifeiad &t ik ame e
ST FepaT Tl &

(@) Su SO, 1956 BT ETRT 200 & WG & UG B AR # TH GRT T T R ST
o @ ey # fewoft . 12 S T @ FeaREl B R o el B U O @ Har A 2 |

(@) SRl @ ST MY e R & @A TR AR & IR TqUM | e ol i CHor &

1.

(m

ey & fouef) @& 6 < |

fewol . 11 @ Faar ¥ U & Haf I B T A ool Ag X BrOR fol. (Somem) @
T eliol THHE & SRR S @ &Y H ST JIRT W 1 & ®9 H  JTW 25, 96, 972/ — .
(31 9T, 2011 T AT} JTHST 72, 62, 254 /— . BT 8) DI 31 D UgAM DI & | ool ol I A
T & T f9AT @ret & ST IRT Sude avTg SNl | SIeHeTRE! W forfad gfie 9 89 @
HRYT B9 S0 7 R feuqely o # arawel € | Su e < e oY S i @ e # o

A P TETH TR B TS 2 |
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(@) SN RT3 H @I TN @ 3R ol HATerd W a¥el! AN T q9I b Xl AT gRI
299! gfe B, Yol FATTT W 20,00 TRIE T &1 1A & <79 & ey H fewot F, 16(@) < |

&9 3T ford v & [

(@) T W GEI SR TR of oIy 8, T SAR) SR 3R fa%ar & SR okl weq &
TS @ fofg 31mawad o |

(@) TR 1T H SRl b GRPIsI & T | W g3 8, (R gIRT ST fd S a1uferd o, ol
P afear Ifod T A T E |

(M) SN BT Hged UF, AWM U4 BN WA $ WH W WIR HAr T Gem g (U
Diicargaem) R TaHdl yarg faawer S & g Rurc # gutar 72 2, o 9feal 9 g @’
A G £ |

(&) AR 1T H BU BT el U, M Td I G & WA W TIR b1 737 fasr @ (U
Ditcgore™) 3R Tl yarg faavor o fos g9 Rur & gerfar war &, s s, 1956 &
gIRT 211 D1 I GRT (330) H FMT Igid A & 6T ¢ |

(8) SUN AMel & fIRT gRT SR AT F. SHTHRIR 829(8) &I 17.07.2003 & START H
[Tl &1 AT | HAT HUT SABFIH, 1956 DI GRT 274 DI U R (1) FT T (8)
RN B TR AN el 2l & |
TN I H AT SR Al SBRI 6 AR T 84 QT T WLIHRY & SR 39[<I 8 Td 9 & el
QY Y I & 9T & U H ofdrall W [EwfoRy 3R #gcaqul ciaie Aifadl & &l ufed Sugdd o 3R
ST URT 4 H TN RPN & SITAR IS BIg URUTCHS 4T USelT & Al U SIMTTIH, 1956 IR SHUTerd
AT JAT UM ST W U & SR WRA H ARG WIHd i Al & ey del-del Refd
ERIGES
®. 31479, 2011 Bl HU DI BT b ot UF b Al 4,

T SN ARG S GHIG dY & oy HUAT & o Td BT GId & I R (AR {6 1Y e 2
(U DUCTTZoRI) oikal & AHel H g I 3, 3R

T 39 ARG B GH Y B fofT Tehe) FaTg fIavor & ATt | Fhel YaTgl o

g/~
IRNG AT
qIeR
AT . 17199
&1 : 05 Jelrs, 2011 THIRY 002198T
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s e TR

et WRilerd a1 Ruld &1 31qde

(S T @1 BAR) RUIC & URT 3 # F2T Sfceria)

1. (@) Bo A e Rl uRewfl @ sraferfa sk Heree @Rt afed gof faaer guid gv
T Srfiver SrRfa oy € | favg vt Al # ) R o faRoT Suerer e 2 |
(@) wdy gRT ¥ & SRM 9 <A uRRefcral & g A far T 8 o e R § SU @
BN IR THD! IRWI & WHT BT M 5 W6 Y SR o iR 8 Rarel 3R Aifos
e uRawfoal & o Aeeet fasioar 72t urg g B |

(M) af & IRE B gRT < aREufeal & ) ARyt AT BT fuer e foar R |

2. B S G & ATAR U MR, 1556 B! GRT 301 D ST IR & Weld & MTAR
HUIRIT, Bl 1R 3 UETdRI I DU GRT D13 Frel AT 3T 701 7 U Y 8 3iR A &1 forg 7Y
gl

3. DU GRT QI 5 GaT SR TR & AR BUT GRT Gl IR I Il T8 wawail @ forg
qeTcH® BICIH e} ATt Y 5 | 89 36 W et & o forg wwef =12 & | S¥f faver o el vm
3R g @ TS G SR AR & AR ST S MR AR SHD B TG B @ §Y
<) URYUTTAl &1 WIS 9 avgall Pl f4ehl @ foTg Sehl Yo Tt SfieiRey =107 Horred! © | 89N
I YRIET @ SR e 330 Jomell & | 3R i e & SR AR a0 3 o<1 Sl
BT S HeT § TebriT \Aeic] SIRTBTclT BT 81 Uil +T&) 7T |

4 (@) T H AR B TE G iR TG B SR HU AAIH, 1956 B €T 301 H
SfoetRaa wfaarsil ok Frawersil & faaer S g7 & Sidia v & forg aufr Yfores ¥ Tt
fbg g E|

(@) T X H &R & & T qEe ok IR & FER HU MR, 1956 DI IRT 301 B
Jierta ¥ Y foreey H fdl wfaer a1 araveratt o @IE § Hus B Bl oFe B foreey A
T T8 fhaT R |
5, T B IR BUI 7 ST | BIS ST WIBR T8} [haT g |

6. BN Y H BTN B ABR AR I SRR & WHY B ATHY DU I T JNcAND oIl TeT
JoTTeh e 2 |

7. (@) DU S MRAGIRG! Jifdarfed wifdfts gerl ok wias [, oer o 9, smex,
! o, Hufed I, THT Yo, SR Yoo, SUDN 3R HaT HY AT (R B ¥ ST BRI
W2 | T < TS I SR TR & SR SR, Hufed B, sl FR, T Y[edh, BTG Yo
3R YR & Hele H DI AfaTfed R AT T |

arfifes B3ArE 2010-11




¥des e SR ot | 2FS
e iR b | T

s we IR FhaR

8, HUHT BT TATTI Y DT FHIK TR DS W S el g8 © AR 9Y & SR AR ARMS g9 § HUA Dl
PIS TG B TR gE B |

9.  BARIRIT H AR BH T TS YA IR W & TR U DI 3R I el faciy Fver a1
P PIS T T T8I ¢ |

10.  TAR) 9 b YR R AR FH QI 75 Gl AR TEIBRYT & AR DU+ AR, TV, 3R Y
FiRIfral I FRE TR ST & TR TR I3 0T IR 3{H J&H el [ |

1. e we, M wReR Rd oM Be a1 Agfedl TR AN Waem HuHl IR aR] e 81 £ |
12, S AR, fcRIferl, FeorEl iR o e @ ERie IR H e e @ |

13, & < TS T IR TR 6 SRR BRI A ) HHR ol g TR T A R |
14, NS GA IR IRV & ATAR U 7 DI JJafer F ol HTT el (BT & |

15. TR NIT H 3R BH 1 g Gl 3R WLIHRY & AR U bl IR 4 DIg 37ed /AT 37afer gewify
T e g 8 |

16.  HUI JAFRH BT GRT 301 & IATd Y 7T IO § g0l YETHRI AR HUTIT BT HUHT gRT a9 &
SN g SAH: IR 3dfed T2 fbu MU & |

17, SUN ERI 99 & SR BIg 01 07 TR 81 fhU € |
18, BN GRT I & SR A (117 & AEH 3 Dlg SRR Tl TS & |
19. & a6 a1 8 &5 99 & SR S0 §RT $lS SHTerarol! Tal @) 73 |

g/—
CHICRCIES|
IR
TRl 9. 17199
Qi : 05 TS, 2011 THARUT 0021198T
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31 A1, 2011 B TG 9N & ol SEidbcs He DRISR BUNIH % 3T forfics & ol W $u!
MR, 1956 DY EIRT 619(4) B AT WRA S 5% TF AgTeral TIeTd t femfor

HuT IR, 1956 @ e iR iy RAfET o & ER S¥as He PNISR R M
3T forfiics 31 71, 2011 B AT 99 & foly focii foaRoT SRR oxeT B o Wae ) FoTia Tl & | Ra
3 R T4 el Wed §RT DU SHTIH B 8T 619(2) B i RIad Fifdfed ol wieTd Huvi!
HfRfTW, 1956 B GRT 227 B S 37 fawg faaRol W S I 2 & foly oy 2 | I8 I S
TRl (T MR A1cs TdhIece |ee gRT i ofam wierr ol S & Al & JFJHR W3
T T TR SR B © | S9! 1 05.07.2011 B RUIE B T S0 g7 U4 foban T e T E |

ARG & 9% T4 TETeial WES DI 3R 1 7 DU AR, 1956 DI &RT 619(3) (@) & i Seidbes
he DRISR PIUNIH S gfen fIfics, 75 fawel @ 31 WG, 2011 B TG I & folg ol Bl [ ol
TR FifAfD oIRaT It B BRIGRY GRS & BRI forg fT Wada w9 @ 6l T8 & 3R Fifafde o
e B Rl iR FU FG! IR FB GG Al B T S T 8 eI Hid ¢ |
TR X ol TR B SR TR # 09 |, BT AATIH, 1956 Y ERT 619(4) B FTT VAT DI Hgeayor
A T8l & foraT HRYT fawin faavor &k Gefir oivar wer Rurd w oI5 fewolt e savas & |

IRA & [=® T HAgTeldr UReTd
& forg sk S 3R @

g/—
(S, @. ¥are)
qMgH ol T & Yo (e &R o
W e—Tc, T3 ool & T Ao
R 78 feell
fa=T: 18.08.2011
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